
  
 

 APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 07, 2018 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting October 17, 2018. 
2. City Council/Planning Commission joint workshop October 18, 2018. 

 
AGENDA REVIEW 

 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION: 

 Antonio Batista – Fire / EMS – Five Year Service Award 
 Haley R. Lovell – Police / Communications – Five Year Service Award 
 Mandy E. Mathis – Fire / EMS – Five Year Service Award 
 Donna L. Saladin – Police / Communications – Five Year Service Award 
 Dylan C. Spencer – Fire / EMS – Five Year Service Award 
 Jason C. Watson – Fire / EMS – Ten Year Service Award 
 Dwight L. Ashton – Fire / EMS – Fifteen Year Service Award 

 
PROCLAMATIONS: 

1. Recognition of Apopka as a Purple Heart City.           Mayor Nelson 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Waste Water Plant Expansion.          Jay Davoll  
2. Debt Overview Presentation.                   Jamie Roberson/Hilltop Securities 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:  

The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker will have four minutes to give remarks, regardless of the number of items addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 2016-16 
for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the calendar year 2019 Floating Holiday.  
2. Authorize the presentation of service weapons to retired members of the Police Department. 
3. Authorize expenditures from Law Enforcement trust funds for investigative buys and undercover operations.  
4. Authorize the purchase of herbicide for Lake McCoy in coordination with Orange County.   
5. School Concurrency Agreement with Apopka Farms. 
6. Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement with San Sebastian Reserve. 
7. Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement with Vista Reserve. 
8. Approve the first extension of two continuing service contracts for Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services.  
9. Approve the first extension of multiple continuing service contracts for Professional Engineering Services.  

10. Authorize a purchase for an emergency purchase of a mobile pump for the Utility Maintenance Division. 
11. Authorize the purchase of two new replacement pumps for sewer lift stations utilizing the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
12. Authorize a purchase for an emergency repair at the North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station. 
13. Authorize the purchase of vehicles and equipment utilizing the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
14. Authorize the issuance of blanket purchase orders for the Utilities and Sanitation Divisions.  

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. UCF Incubator lease and renovations.     Jim Hitt 
 

2. Final Development Plan – 7-Eleven Rebuild                                                                                                             Jean Sanchez 
Project: 7-Eleven Inc. c/o Craig Cornelison, P.E. 
Location: 2229 East Semoran Boulevard 
 
 

1



  
 

3. Final Development Plan – Apopka Business Complex Addition                                                                              Jean Sanchez 
Project: Little Brownie Properties, Inc.  
Location: 1350 Sheeler Avenue 
 

4. Final Development Plan – Meadow View Apartments                                                                                            Pam Richmond 
Project: Allonde Development, LLC  
Location: 1611 Vick Road 
 

5. Final Development Plan – Sterling Title                                                                                                                  Jean Sanchez 
Project: Prograde Homes, Inc., c/o Bryan Blake  
Location: 217 South Highland Avenue 
 

6. Final Development Plan/Plat – Carriage Hill, Phase II Subdivision                                                             Jean Sanchez 
Project:  JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC  
Location: 1455 West Lester Road and West Lester Road 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2657 – Second Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate - Fronds Road                                           Pam Richmond 
Project:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd., c/o Pat Lee  
Location: South of U.S. Highway 441, East of Hermit Smith Road and West of US 441 
 

2. Ordinance No. 2680 – Second Reading – Utility Easement Vacate                                                                 Phil Martinez 
Project:  Willie and Cynthia Mcinvale 
Location: 1541 Islay Court 
 

3. Resolution 2018-23 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment.            Jamie Roberson 
 

4. Resolution 2018-24 - FY18/19 Budget Amendment.            Jamie Roberson 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

1.    Appointment of Brian Forman as the Recreation Director. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance: Hours of Sale.         Commissioner Becker 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Framed 1951 Towne of Apopka Municipal Bond donated anonymously to the City of Apopka. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

November 7, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

November 7, 2018 6:00pm –  Vietnam Traveling Memorial Wall – Kit Land Nelson Park  

November 12, 2018 - City Offices Closed in observance of Veterans Day 

November 12, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

November 13, 2018 5:30pm – 7:30pm  Planning Commissioner Meeting 

November 17, 2018 11:00am – 12:00pm Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

November 20, 2018 6:00pm –  Code Enforcement Hearing 

November 21, 2018 - Cancelled: City Council Meeting 

November 22, 2018 - City Offices Closed in observance of Thanksgiving 

November 23, 2018 - City Offices Closed in observance of Thanksgiving 

November 26, 2018 10:00am –  Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CIITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Bryan Nelson 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Alice Nolan 

Commissioner Alexander Smith 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Edward Bass 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Nelson called on Pastor Waldemar Sarrano, of Bethany World 

Ministries, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Nelson introduced Heather Thompson, an 8th grader at 

Wolf Lake Middle who led in the Pledge of Allegiance. She said on this day in 1931, one of our 

country's most notorious gangsters was sentenced to eleven years in prison. His criminal acts 

included gambling, alcohol smuggling, and prostitution. However, he was only convicted for tax 

evasion. So, who am talking about? That is right! Scarface himself, Al Capone.  

Mr. Capone was born on January 17, 1899 in Brooklyn, New York. He was expelled from school 

at age 14 and became involved in gangs. He continued joining bigger criminal organizations 

until he was in the Five Points Gang. While still in New York, Al married Mae Coughlin and had 

one child. When the 1920’s rolled around, he moved to Chicago, by invitation from Johnny 

Torrio, the leader of a huge illegal enterprise. Torrio retired, which left Capone in charge in 

1925. Mr. Capone became Chicago’s “crime king” by taking out his competitors through 

gangland battles and slayings. One of which being the St. Valentine's Day Massacre in 1929. 

Soon enough, by the 1930’s, Al was at the top of the F.B.I.’s “Most Wanted” list. At this point in 

his life, his notoriety was at a national level. At first, he avoided jail time by intimidating 

witnesses, bribing government officials, and having various hideouts. His time came when a 

group of officers, nicknamed “the Untouchables”, routinely broke up his illegal businesses. 

Finally, they caught him on tax evasion. This landed Al Capone into prison on an eleven-year 

sentence. Scar-faced served a part of his time in the federal prison in Atlanta, but accusations of 

special treatment landed him in Alcatraz. He wasn't there too long though, because of his good 

behavior he was released in 1939, 3 years before he was scheduled. After being released from 

prison, Al Capone had health problems, and ended up dying from pneumonia in 1947 in Palm 

Beach, Florida. At his time of death, his net worth estimated to be about one hundred thousand 

dollars, which would be over $1.1 billion today. Overall, on this day, October 17
,
1931, one of 

our country’s biggest criminals went to jail, all because he didn't pay his taxes. 

Commissioner Becker recognized Boy Scout Troop 880. He said they were here to observe our 

City Council meeting as a requirement of one of the ranks they are working toward.  

 

3



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular and budget hearing meeting October 3, 2018. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve the minutes of October 3, 2018 as presented.  Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith and Nolan voting aye.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW – There were no changes. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

PROCLAMATION: 

Mayor Nelson read a proclamation into the record stating Rotary International, founded February 

23 1905, in Chicago, IL, is the world’s first and one of the largest nonprofit service 

organizations. The Rotary moto “Service Above Self” inspires members to provide humanitarian 

service, encourage high ethical standards, and promote good will and peace in the world. He 

recognized October 24, 2018 as Rotary Polio Plus Day in Apopka.  

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Presentation of check donations from the Elks Lodge 2422 for the Police and Fire Departments. 

Gene Knight, representing Elks Lodge 2422, presented a check for $1,000 to the Police 

Department for Community Outreach.  He presented a check for $1,000 to the Fire 

Department for smoke detectors. 

 

2. Appraisal and conditions for the property at 5th Street and Park Ave.  

Jim Hitt, Community Development Director, provided an update regarding the property at 5
th

 

Street and Park Avenue.  He stated this was a multi-tenant building over 20,000 square feet, 

and built in 1963. He advised the appraisal came in at $825,000, and the advertised price is 

$850,000. He said that Ray Marsh, Building Official and Assistant Fire Chief inspected the 

building and advised that the block construction is not concrete blocks as utilized in today’s 

construction. They recommended a structural evaluation to make sure the building is safe. 

Several issues pointed out such as roof leaks, stating the roof would more than likely need 

replacing and there was mold and mildew present. The recommendation is that the entire 

building be brought into commercial grade compliance. The overhang was in distress and 

should be inspected by a constructional engineer. The building and bathrooms would need to 

be brought into ADA compliance. It is estimated to bring the building up to code would cost 

$750,000 to $1 million. 

 

Commissioner Becker said the property was more attractive to him without the building on it. 

He stated knowing we have the Station Street property that will be going out to RFP, was 

there any opportunity to enter into a letter of intent with the current owner for negotiated 

ideas in parlaying that with the RFP process. He said this would be nonbinding on the City, 

but would provide comfort to the current owner regarding our interest on the property since it 

is strategic to the downtown plans.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the possibility of demolition and looking for a developer 

interested in developing this area to tie into the City plans of the area. Parking was also 

discussed and the possibility of utilizing the public parking lot.  

 

4



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

Commissioner Nolan reiterated that she did not want to move forward with spending money 

on this property after having raised taxes and had staff cut their budgets.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said if this was going to be used for City purposes such as office 

space or expansion, it would be advantageous. He said the price was marketable for private 

development and he would lean toward leaving this to the private sector.  

 

Mr. Hitt said with the private sector there was CRA money that could be utilized toward that.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker, City Attorney Shepard he has seen letter of intents 

structured in the way he was describing. Mr. Shepard said it is a viable option, but the 

question is how long would the City be able to tie up this property in a letter of intent and at 

what price given the market conditions. He said they may need to come up with other types 

of CRA grants as incentives.  

 

Following discussion, it was the consensus to have Mr. Hitt come back with more 

information and ideas with regard to a letter of intent, utilizing CRA incentives, and research 

what other municipalities have done in situations like this.  

 

Public Comment: There were no public speakers. 

 

CONSENT 
1. Approve a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 

 

 MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to approve 

one item on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

BUSINESS 

1. Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Silver Oak – Minor Amendment 

Project:  Development Solutions SH, LLC  

Location:  North of East Keene Road and west of Sheeler Avenue 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said this is a request by the developer and owner to 

amend development condition number six for the recreation and open space conditions 

within the master plan and preliminary development plan. He said a representative for 

Development Solutions, Debra Ushkowitz, is present and can address any questions. He 

reviewed the location of the development and the existing approved development that 

contains 116 lots in Phase 1, and Phase 2 is 66 lots for a total of 182 residential lots. The 

Final Development Plan was approved by Council in May 2016 and Phase 1, Plat 1 & 2 

was approved November 2, 2016. He advised the first phase has been platted and based 

upon records from the Building Department there are approximately 19-25 certificate of 

occupancies. According to the developer, they have a number of contracts for future 

homes. The current condition states the recreation amenities are to be completed by the 

50
th

 certificate of occupancy. The request is to extend that number to 75 certificate of 

occupancies. DRC has not objection of extending this and requiring a performance bond 

to cover the cost of those recreation facilities. DRC has no objection to the amendment.   

 

5



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

Debra Ushkowitz said there has been a small slowdown in sales, as well as trying to get 

the building design and contractors ready to go they are seeing significant delays. She 

stated they have designed the building, submitted that to the City and ready to start with 

building permits. She said they have 34 homes that are occupied and they have closer to 

40 homes that are permitted. This is getting close to the CO limitation that would stop 

construction. She said they are moving forward with the amenities, but would like to 

avoid stopping sales and construction. She stated the bond will be established with City 

staff at the preconstruction meeting. She advised they are ready to start construction once 

the building permit is issued and they are finalizing an updated site plan and application 

for approval. She reiterated the purpose of this amendment is to avoid stopping sales and 

construction, stating they did not think that was good for the community or the project. 

She affirmed the funds are there and in place for the amenities, it is just going through the 

process of obtaining the building permits. She stated there is an annual HOA meeting that 

will be noticed shortly and they plan to have on the agenda the plans for the amenities 

and their plan for moving forward. She advised they have not received any complaints.  

 

In response to Mayor Nelson inquiring as to the timeframe for the permitting process to 

start construction of amenities, Mr. Moon advised that late this afternoon the site plan for 

the clubhouse and pool were received. This will likely only require review by DRC and 

may take up to four weeks, they will hold the preconstruction meeting and move forward 

with construction.  

 

Christian Swann, Surrey Homes, said there are 32 homes occupied, 3 models, and 

approximately 10 homes under construction, 1 permitted, 1 permit under review, and 3 

permit applications to be submitted. 

 

Discussion ensued as to whether the amendment was by the 75
th

 CO or building permit. It 

was determined that the amendment is by the 75
th

 building permit.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to 

approve the Silver Oak Minor Amendment, as recommended by staff. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Smith, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 
1. Ordinance No. 2673 – Second Reading – Land Development Code Amendment 

Article V. Section 5.05.00 - Floodplains. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2673 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE APOPKA CITY COUNCIL, AMENDING THE 

APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REPEAL LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE SECTION 5.05.00 FLOODPLAINS; TO ADOPT A NEW SECTION 

5.05.00; TO AMEND LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTION 1.08.13 

DEFINITIONS; TO ADOPT FLOOD HAZARD MAPS, TO DESIGNATE A 

6



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR, TO ADOPT PROCEDURES AND 

CRITERIA FOR DEVELOPMENT IN FLOOD HAZARD AREAS, AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES; TO ADOPT TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS TO 

THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY; 

SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Earp said there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2673. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2678 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning/PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan. Project:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD; Florida Express 

Trucking, Inc.; Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC.  

Location:  West side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, and east of Hermit Smith 

Road.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2678 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP), “CITY” RESIDENTIAL 

SINGLE-FAMILY DISTRICT (R-1AA), “CITY” MIXED-EC (MIXED- 

USE), “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE), AND “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT) TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD), FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON 

THE WEST SIDE OF SR 429, SOUTH OF GENERAL ELECTRIC ROAD, 

AND EAST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD, COMPRISING 186.03 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MID FLORIDA FREEZER 

WAREHOUSES LTD; AND EAGLES LANDING AT OCOEE, LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Moon said this was before City Council on October 3, 2018, for a First Reading of the 

PUD zoning ordinance.  He advised a Development Agreement is part of the review this 

evening. The recommendation is to take three actions; 1) Adopt Ordinance 2678; 2) Approve 

the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan/Preliminary Site Plan; and 3) Approve the 

Development Agreement.  He advised the intent of the development agreement is to address 

the transportation improvements, zoning and development standards the applicant, developer, 

and future users are subject in what they are obligated to commit in terms of road 

improvements. It also addressing the timing of the dedication of right-of-way for the 

7



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

realignment of Petersen Road and  vacate of Petersen Road, dedication of the spine road 

right-of-way. He advised Exhibit C map would be placed prior to the Mayor signing the 

agreement.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2678. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve 

the Master Plan/Predevelopment Plan/Final Development Plan. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and 

Nolan voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve 

the Development Agreement Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2681 – Second Reading – 2018 Annexation Cycle 5 

Project:  Construesse USA, Inc.  Location: 2600 Rock Springs Road. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2681 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CONSTRUESSE USA, INC. AND LOCATED AT 2600 ROCK 
SPRINGS ROAD, PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, said there have been no changes since the First Reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2681. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2657 – First Reading – Right-of-Way Vacate 

Project:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd., c/o Pat Lee  

Location: South of U.S. Highway 441, East of Hermit Smith Road and West of US 441. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

8



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

ORDINANCE NO. 2657 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A RIGHT 

OF WAY, KNOWN AS FRONDS ROAD LOCATED SOUTH OF U.S. 

HIGHWAY 441, EAST OF S.R. 429; IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21, 

RANGE 27, OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR 

CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Pam Richardson, Transportation Planner, said this item is for the First Reading for request to 

vacate a portion of Fronds Road right-of-way. She reviewed the location on a map and 

advised it is bound on the north, east, and south by the future Mid Florida Logistics Park.  To 

the west Fronds Road continues to Hermit Smith Road.  The recommendation is to accept the 

First Reading and carry over for a Second Reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve 

Ordinance No. 2657 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, 

and Nolan voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2680 – First Reading – Utility Easement Vacate 

Project:  Willie and Cynthia McInvale 

Location: 1541 Islay Court.   The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2680 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A PORTION 

OF THE EASEMENT AT THE REAR OF 1541 ISLAY COURT, LOCATED 

NORTH OF ISLAY COURT, WEST OF TOURNAMENT DRIVE; 

PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, 

FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 

Phil Martinez, Planner, said the applicant proposes to vacate a portion of the rear yard utility 

easement at 1541 Islay Court in Errol Estates. In February 2011, City staff mistakenly 

approved a building permit for the subject property where the pool and screen enclosure 

encroach upon the previously mentioned utility easement. He advised utility providers, both 

public and private sector have responded to the vacate request and state no objection to the 

partial vacate of this utility easement. He clarified Century Link did not support vacating the 

entire utility easement, however, this is only a partial vacate and Century Link provided 

terms and conditions to be recognized by the property owner and in turn they will not object. 

The property owner has agreed to these terms and conditions. The recommendation is to 

accept the First Reading and carry over for a Second Reading.  

 

9



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2680 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

1. November 21, 2018, City Council Meeting 

 

Mr. Bass advised our mutual aid agreement with the State and the hurricane in the panhandle, the 

City of Apopka has sent resources and staff from both Police and Fire to help in these areas.  

 

Mr. Bass advised the second meeting in November was the eve of Thanksgiving and inquired if 

the Council desired to hold or cancel the meeting on November 21, 2018.  

 

It was the consensus of the City Council to cancel the meeting of November 21, 2018.  

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Bankson said they had received a letter from a resident whose cat was attacked by 

coyotes. He said this is an emotional issue, and affirmed that staff is working on issues and Errol 

is working on their mowing schedule to help minimize such issues. He declared he wanted to 

make sure the City was doing what we can to watch out for our citizens. 

 

Mayor Nelson said that would be Animal Control, which is at the County level. He stated the 

County needs to be aware of these issues. Mr. Bass added that the City has information to share 

with citizens regarding numbers to call.  

 

Commissioner Nolan thanked the first responders that left their families to go help in the 

panhandle. She stated this shows how committed we are to our community in Florida.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said that Mark Byrd’s church has set up a distribution area for collection 

and they will deliver these items. He said if people would like to drop off to Victory Ministries, 

they will make sure items are received by this collection area.  

 

Commissioner Becker said Saturday will be very busy in Apopka with the Gina McReynolds 5K 

at Northwest Rec, Gospel Fest at Kit Land Nelson Park, and the Debbie Turner Breast Fest is at 

the Elks Lodge.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT –  

Mayor Nelson called on Rob Hippler, IT Director, to talk about communication or the lack of, 

stating there were areas in the panhandle that still has cellular towers down.  

 

Mr. Hippler said when Hurricane Michael hit the area of the panhandle, an entire county is still 

without Verizon service. He said Apopka uses Verizon exclusively for iPads and laptops, as well 

as most of the cellular phones.  Verizon was chosen after testing three different carriers they had 

10



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 17, 2018, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

the best coverage and most bandwidth. He suggested the City look into having other options in 

the event our carrier lose service over a catastrophic event. He will come back to Council with 

additional information and a recommendation.  

 

Mayor Nelson reported the Lodge is being pressure washed and will be painted within 10 days.  

He said the KaBoom build at Alonzo Williams Park was on Friday and went very well. The Boy 

Scouts are working on the monument in Kit Land Nelson Park and he thanked them for their 

work and having it completed by November 7, 2018.  

 

Mayor Nelson reminded everyone of the Land Development Code joint meeting tomorrow at 

2:00 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m.  

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

 
_______________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the joint City Council and Planning Commission workshop held on October 

18, 2018, at 2:00 p.m., in the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Bryan Nelson 

Commissioner Doug Bankson  

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

Commissioner Alexander Smith 

Planning Commission Member Jim Green 

Planning Commission Member Linda Laurendeau 

Planning Commission Member Robert Ryan 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Alice Nolan, excused 

 Planning Commission Member Butch Stanley 

   Planning Commission Member John Sprinkle 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Nelson called on Linda Laurendeau who gave the invocation.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Nelson led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said the rewrite of the Land Development Code 

is a huge project. He provided copies of the PowerPoint by Clarion. He introduced Craig 

Richardson, David Henning, and Tara Salmieri of Clarion. Clarion has been working on this for 

a year now. The document sets up some mixed-use districts consolidated in one area. Agriculture 

is now in one district. The downtown area is consolidated into one big map as an overlay district. 

He advised this document has some prohibitions for the downtown area. He said as they review 

this, they will make notes for any recommended changes. 

 

Mr. Hitt said he was planning to bring this to the Planning Commission the second week in 

December, then to City Council the second week in January and adoption in February.  

 

Craig Richardson, David Henning and Tara Salmieri of Clarion provided a review of the Land 

Development Code.  Mr. Richardson pointed out that this document has more graphics and 

charts to make it more efficient and user friendly, as well as easier to understand. There are three 

key themes: 1) Create a user-friendly code; 2) Implement the Comprehensive Plan, Vision Plan, 

and Small Area Plans by restructuring and modernizing the zoning districts; and 3) Modernize 

the Development Standards.  The Land Development Code is made up of 10 Articles: Article 1: 

General Provisions; Article 2: Administration; Article 3: Zoning Districts; Article 4: Use 

Regulations; Article 5: Development Standards; Article 6: Environmental Standards; Article 7: 

Concurrency Management System; Article 8: Nonconformities; Article 9: Enforcement; and 

Article 10: Definitions and Rules of Measurement.  Clarion staff provided an overview and 

highlights of each Article.  A copy of the PowerPoint is attached and made a part of the minutes.  

 

Mr. Hitt advised the proposed schedule is for the Land Development Code to be presented to the 

Planning Commission on December 11, 2018, City Council First Reading on January 16, 2019; 

and Second Reading on February 6, 2019.  

12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a joint City Council/Planning Commission workshop held on October 18, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 4:51 p.m. 

 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

13



City of Apopka
Water Reclamation Facility Expansion

Update as of November 7, 2018

14



Project Goals

• Expand the existing treatment plant 

capacity from 4.5 MGD to 8.0 MGD

• Improve existing treatment plant to 

provide nutrient removal treatment to 

meet total nitrogen requirements in the 

Wekiva Basin Protection Area

• Construction began in October 2016 and 

should be completed on or before April 

2019

15



Description

• Expansion is projected to provide 

treatment capacity through 2030

• Project costs are estimated at ~$65M 

• Financing through the Florida Department 

of Environmental Project (FDEP) State 

Revolving Fund (SRF)

16



Project Location
• The project will expand the WRF located at 748 E 

Cleveland St., on existing treatment plant property

17



Background – Options

• Evaluated two options – Second Anoxic 

Basin or Denitrification Filters

• Chose adding Second Anoxic Basins to the 

existing Loop Aeration Plant and new 

plant expansion 

− Option has been proven effective in 

nutrient removal

− Option has lower long term economic 

benefits.
18



Environmental Benefits

• Improvements to biological nutrient removal process 

prior to discharge to the City’s public access 

reclaimed water system or slow-rate restricted 

access sprayfield; some of which is located in the 

Wekiva Basin Protection Area

• Upgrade of onsite biosolids treatment to a minimum 

Class AA

• Increased capacity and redundancy to treat 

wastewater with less probability of off-spec 

discharges

• Improvements to utility asset management to reduce 

probability of overflows and discharges due to 

system failures 19



Environmental Effects
• Proposed project site has been in use for more than 40 

years and is regularly maintained.  No federal or state 

listed plants in the project area requiring regulatory 

oversight.

• Project is located within the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

(FWS) sand skink (Neoseps reynoldsi) and blue-tailed 

mole skink (Eumeces egregious) consultation area and 

contains soils and elevation specifically identified as 

suitable for mole skinks.  Site was evaluated and 

cleared prior to start of construction.

20



Financial Feasibility

• Project will be financed through the DEP 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSFR) 

Loan Program

• CWSRF Interest Rate is anticipated to be 

<1.0% versus Bond Funding rate of 

approximately 3.4%

• CWSRF Loan will result in approximately $20M 

in total debt service savings to the City versus 

financing through bond funding

• CWSRF Loan will be paid for through future 

impact fees and customer rates
21



Project Financial Summary

• Design SRF Loan  - $1.4 M

• Construction SRF Loan  - $65 M

• Project Spent to Date - $40 M

22



Project Schedule
• Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for design 

services – October 2015

• Award Design Services Contract – February 

2016 - TetraTech

• Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for 

Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMAR) – March 

2016

• Award Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMAR) 

Contract – May 2016

• Begin Construction – October 2016

• Complete Construction – April 2019
23



24



25



26



Questions?

27



Contacts

Mark P. Galvin, Managing Director
Mark.Galvin@HilltopSecurities.com

Angela Singleton, Assistant Vice President
Angela.Singleton@HilltopSecurities.com

450 S. Orange Avenue, Suite 460
Orlando, Florida 32801
407.426.9611 Tel

November 7, 2018

City of Apopka, Florida
Debt Overview

28



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Overview of the City’s Outstanding Debt

1

 Overview of City’s Debt including General Fund, Sanitation System, and Utility 
System Debt

 City’s General Fund has $10.7 million in outstanding bonds and bank loans

 Approximately $4.7 million in leases outstanding with $741,000 in annual 
lease payments

 City’s Sanitation System has $249,000 in bank loans outstanding

 City’s Water and Sewer System has $80 million in debt outstanding including 
$14 million in bonds and $66 million in State Revolving Loan Funds awarded / 
outstanding

Only the Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 have a 
rating by Moody’s of “Aa2”

29



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Overview of the City’s Outstanding Debt

2

 City’s $15.4 million in General Fund debt outstanding includes:

 1 Florida Municipal Loan Council (FMLC) bond with $170,000 outstanding, which 
matures on 12/1/2018

 9 Bank Loans with a total of $10.5 million outstanding

 Majority of the bank loans were issued to finance public safety vehicles 
and equipment

 5 Leases with a total of $4.7 million outstanding

 Majority of leases were used to finance equipment

 Sanitation System Note with $249,000 outstanding, matures on 3/1/2019

 $80 million in Water and Sewer System debt:

 1 Bond issue with $14 million outstanding

 2 SRF Loans with a total of $66 million authorized/awarded for the Wastewater 
Plant

30



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

General Fund Debt Outstanding

3

General Fund Debt Outstanding as of 10/1/2018

Bond Issue
Par Amount
 Outstanding  Interest Rates Final Maturity

FMLC Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B 170,000$                       5.25% 12/1/2018

Bank Loans
Capital Improvement Revenue Note,  Series 2018 2,805,000                      2.90% 6/1/2025
Capital Improvement Revenue Note,  Series 2017 1,941,000                      1.87% 8/1/2022
Special Obligation Imprv. Revenue Note, Series 2016 1,133,000                      1.39% 3/1/2021
Special Obligation Imprv. Revenue Note, Series 2015 364,000                          1.67% 3/1/2022
Special Obligation Imprv. Revenue Note, Series 2014 783,000                          1.92% 3/1/2024
Special Obligation Imprv. Revenue Note, Series 2013C 603,775                          1.20% 12/1/2018
Special Obligation Imprv. Revenue Note, Series 2013A 580,067                          1.80% 3/1/2023
Recreational Impact Fee Revenue Note, Series 2007A 2,300,000                      3.90% 3/1/2022
Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 1999A 30,750                            4.87% 1/29/2019
Total Bonds and Bank Loans Outstanding 10,710,592$               

Capital  Leases
Lease Amount
 Outstanding  Annual Payment Final Maturity

Edmonds Software/Computer Equipment 92,437$                          46,219$                 2020
Motorola Equipment  2,497,347                      304,068                 2027
Stryker Flex Financial Equipment Lease 162,963                          54,321                    2021
TCF Equipment Finance 143,262                          75,352                    2020
Operating  Leases
Motorola Solutions  1,829,380                      261,340                 2020
Total Leases Outstanding 4,725,389$                  741,299$             

BONDS AND BANK LOANS

LEASES

31



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

General Fund Debt Outstanding

4

$0
$250,000
$500,000
$750,000

$1,000,000
$1,250,000
$1,500,000
$1,750,000
$2,000,000
$2,250,000
$2,500,000
$2,750,000
$3,000,000
$3,250,000
$3,500,000
$3,750,000
$4,000,000
$4,250,000

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

20
46

20
47

20
48

Year Ending 9/30

 Series 2018 Series 2017 Series 2016 Series 2015 Series 2014 Series 2013C
Series 2013A Series 2007A Series 2003B Series 1999A  Leases

City of Apopka, Florida
Outstanding General Fund Debt  

32



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Observations

5

 The City’s General Fund for a city of its size has a relatively low amount of debt

 Majority of the debt outstanding is for equipment purchases which due to the short 
average life of the equipment makes the debt front loaded 

 Which puts pressure on your budget until it rolls off

 Once the short term debt is reduced it will increase your bonding capacity to finance 
larger capital improvement projects

 However unless you start using a more pay as you go philosophy to purchase 
equipment this pattern will continue

33



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Debt

6

*Estimated SRF Loan amortizations. SRF WW480211 is based on the full $65,000,000 disbursement with payments beginning 9/15/2019.

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000
20

19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

20
46

20
47

20
48

Year Ending 9/30

Utility Bonds, Series 2012 SRF Loan (WW480211) SRF Loan (WW480210)

City of Apopka, Florida
Outstanding Water and Sewer Debt  

34



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Sanitation and Water & Sewer Debt Outstanding

7

*SRF WW480211 total award amount is $65,000,000 in which the full amount has not yet been disbursed.

Sanitation System Debt Outstanding as of 10/1/2018

Bank Loan
 Amount 

Outstanding 
Annual

 Debt Service Interest Rates Final Maturity

Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2014 249,000$                 250,332$                 1.07% 3/1/2019

Total Sanitation System Debt Outstanding 249,000$                250,332$               

Water and Sewer System Debt Outstanding as of 10/1/2018*

Bond Issue
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 14,480,000$           1,318,150$             3.00% ‐ 5.00% 10/1/2031

SRF Loans 
WW480210 1,330,885                81,766                     1.74% / 1.37% 4/15/2037
WW480211* 65,000,000             3,594,580                .66% / .71%/ .92% 3/15/2039
Subtotal ‐ SRF Loans Outstanding 66,330,885            3,676,346              

Total Water and Sewer System Debt Outstanding 80,810,885$         

35



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

QUESTIONS

8

Questions?

36



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Municipal Advisor Disclosures

37



Member FINRA/SIPC/NYSE
© 2018 Hilltop Securities Inc.
All Rights Reserved

Disclosure
This communication is intended for issuers for educational and informational purposes only and does not constitute
legal or investment advice, nor is it an offer or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell any investment or other specific
product or service. Financial transactions may be dependent upon many factors such as, but not limited to, interest
rate trends, tax rates, supply, change in laws, rules and regulations, as well as changes in credit quality and rating
agency considerations. The effect of such changes in such assumptions may be material and could affect the
projected results. Any outcome or result HilltopSecurities, or any of its employees, may have achieved on behalf of our
clients in previous matters does not necessarily indicate similar results can be obtained in the future for current or
potential clients. HilltopSecurities makes no claim the use of this communication will assure a successful outcome.
This communication is intended for institutional use only. For additional information, comments or questions, please
contact Hilltop Securities Inc.

38



DRAFT – November 2, 2018 

1 
 

City of Apopka 
DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
 
 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of the City of Apopka, Florida (“City”) debt policy is to establish guidelines and 
a framework for the issuance and management of the City’s debt.  The City is committed to 
strong financial management practices, including maintaining the financial viability of the City 
and the full and timely repayment of all borrowings. Debt is defined to includes, bonds, notes, 
loans, direct placements, leases, lease purchases, commercial paper, letters of credit, lines of 
credit or other forms of debt obligations.  

 
II. DEBT ISSUANCE POLICY 
 

Issuance of debt will be subject to approval by the City Council. Prior to the issuance of any 
debt, management must: 

 
• Justify the reason for the issuance of debt obligations; 
• Ensure that the life of the debt is less than the life of the assets acquired or constructed 

with debt proceeds; 
• Identify the resources committed to paying the principal and interest on the debt; 
• Prepare a preliminary financing plan including type of debt obligation to be issued, 

potential funds to secure the debt and proposed structure and term, and,  
• Properly account for the use of the debt proceeds and repayment of the debt. 

 
A. Short Term Debt – Short-term debt can be used to diversify a debt portfolio, reduce 

interest costs, provide interim funding for capital projects and improve the match of assets 
to liabilities. The City can issue short term debt on either a fixed or variable rate basis. The 
City may issue commercial paper and other forms of variable rate debt from time to time, 
but its use will generally be restricted to providing interim financing for capital projects. 
The amount of unhedged variable rate debt will generally not exceed 20% of all 
outstanding debt.  
 

B. Lease and Equipment Purchases – Debt for the purchase of equipment, vehicles, etc. can 
be done either as a lease purchase structure or a direct purchase / bank loan. The term of 
the loan / lease purchase will not exceed the average life or usefulness of the purchase. 

 
C.  Long Term Debt – Long term debt will be used to finance essential capital projects and 

certain equipment where it is cost effective and prudent. Long term debt, which includes 
lease financings, will not be used to fund the City’s operations. The City will avoid the use 
of long-term debt to finance items traditionally funded in the annual operating budget such 
as retirement contributions, facility maintenance, repairs, recurring equipment purchases, 

39



DRAFT – November 2, 2018 

2 
 

etc. The useful life of the asset or project shall not exceed the payout schedule of any debt 
issued by the City.  

 
D. Tax-Exempt and Taxable Debt - The City may issue debt as tax-exempt debt or taxable 

debt. The City has traditionally issued tax-exempt debt which results in significant interest 
cost savings compared with the interest cost on taxable debt. Accordingly, all of the City’s 
debt should be issued to take advantage of the exemption from federal income taxes unless 
prohibited by federal law or applicable federal regulations. 

 
 
III. LIMITATIONS ON INDEBTEDNESS 

The Florida Constitution and Florida Statutes do not set any limitations on the amount of debt 
that can be issued. For debt issued by the City, the following limitations will apply: 

• The City will strive to maintain a high reliance on pay-as-you-go financing for its capital 
improvements and capital assets. 
 

• For the issuance of debt backed by ad valorem taxes, the Constitution requires approval 
by a majority of electors in the City.    
 

• The City should strive to maintain or increase its outstanding bond ratings when issuing 
additional debt. 
 

• For the issuance of revenue debt obligations backed by special revenues received by the 
City, the revenues must be sufficient to meet the minimum debt service coverage 
requirements in the debt covenants. 

 
• For the issuance of revenue debt obligations supported by business-type activities, the 

net revenues of business-type activities pledged for debt service must be sufficient to 
meet the minimum debt service coverage requirements in the bond covenants. 

 
• For the issuance of special assessment debt obligations, the City shall adopt assessments 

on the benefitting properties sufficient to pay the annual debt service of the debt. 
 

IV. DEBT STRUCTURE  

A. The City will utilize various debt structures to accomplish its financing goals, including 
the use of premium bonds, discount bonds, capital appreciation bonds and capitalized 
interest when appropriate. 
 

B. Call provisions for the City’s debt issuance shall be made as short as possible consistent 
with the lowest interest cost to City. When possible, all City debt shall be callable only at 
par. 
 

40



DRAFT – November 2, 2018 

3 
 

C. Bond insurance will be used when it provides a suitable economic savings for the City.   
Credit enhancement may take other forms such as Letters of Credit (LOC) and may be used 
if economically beneficial to the City. 
 

D. The final maturity of a long-term debt issue should generally not exceed thirty (30) years 
unless otherwise directed by the City Council. 
 

E. The use of derivatives in connection with debt issues should be limited and used on a case 
by case basis. The City staff and its Financial Advisor will provide a detail analysis 
identifying the risks associated with the derivative product. 

 
V. METHOD OF SALE 

The City’s debt obligations may be sold by competitive or negotiated sale methods. The 
selected method of sale depends upon the option which is expected to result in the lowest cost 
and most favorable terms to the City given the financial structure used, market conditions, and 
prior experience.  A determination of the appropriate method of sale will be made by City staff 
prior to each financing, working in concert with the City’s Financial Advisor.   

 
VI. DEBT REFUNDINGS 

The City’s staff and the Financial Advisor shall monitor the municipal bond market for 
opportunities to obtain interest savings by refunding outstanding debt.  Current tax law does 
not allow the issuance of tax-exempt advance refunding bonds. There is no similar limitation 
for tax-exempt current refunding bonds. The following guidelines should apply to the issuance 
of refunding bonds, unless circumstances warrant a deviation therefrom: 

 
• Current refundings should have a minimum target savings level measured on a present 

value basis equal to 3% of the par amount of bonds being refunded. 
 

• Advance refundings, if and when applicable, should have a minimum target savings 
level measured on a present value basis equal to 5% of the par amount of bonds being 
refunded. 

 
There may be compelling public policy objectives to move forward with refundings that do 
not meet these savings guidelines, such as eliminating restrictive debt covenants or providing 
additional financial flexibility. 

 
VII. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The City is committed to providing continuing disclosure of financial and pertinent credit 
information relevant to the City’s outstanding securities and will abide by provisions of 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15c2-12 concerning primary and secondary 
market disclosure. The Finance Director or designee, will be responsible for meeting the 
disclosure requirements associated with outstanding debt. To assist in meeting the continuing 
disclosure requirements, the City will hire a qualified dissemination agent, as needed. 
 

41



DRAFT – November 2, 2018 

4 
 

VIII. POST ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE 

The City understands the importance of post-issuance compliance requirements applicable to 
tax-advantaged debt. To ensure the continued tax-advantaged status of the City’s bond issues, 
the City will monitor (1) the qualified use of proceeds and financed property and (2) arbitrage 
yield restriction and rebate requirements. 

 
 

42



Municipal Securities 

Post-Issuance 

Disclosure Policy 

DRAFT 11/2/18 

 
 

The City of Apopka, 
Florida 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
150 East 5th Street 
Apopka, FL 32703 

43



  

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. Purpose ..................................................................................................... 1 

B. Scope ........................................................................................................ 1 

C. Responsibility of the Disclosure Working Group .................................... 1 

D. Annual Reporting Requirements .............................................................. 2 

E. Event Notice Requirements ..................................................................... 2 

F. Voluntary Disclosure Requirements ........................................................ 4 

G. Third Party Information/Quarterly Disclosure Requirements ................. 5 

H. Coordinating Continuing Disclosure with Primary Disclosure ............... 5 

I. Website Disclosure .................................................................................. 6 

J. Training for Employees and Issuer Officials ........................................... 6 

K. Effective Date ........................................................................................... 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



1  

A. Purpose 
 
The City of Apopka, Florida (the “City”) is committed to providing timely and consistent 
dissemination of financial information in accordance with Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) and the City’s continuing disclosure 
undertakings. 

 
This policy affirms the City’s commitment to fair post-issuance disclosure. The goal is to 
establish and maintain guidelines for presenting related financial reports and events to 
interested third parties, financial institutions and the general public in compliance with the 
Rule and the City’s continuing disclosure undertakings. 

 
B. Scope 

 
This policy covers all City employees and officials of the City. It covers disclosure 
documents filed with the SEC, statements made in the City’s Audited Financial 
Statements and in any unaudited interim reports, as well as public statements made by 
authorized City officials. 

 
C. Responsibility of the Disclosure Working Group 

 
The City has established a Disclosure Working Group (“DWG”) consisting of the City 
Administrator and Finance Director. In connection with each primary offering subject to 
the Rule, as well as annually in connection with its continuing disclosure filings required by 
the Rule, the DWG will systematically review filings, reports and other public statements 
to determine whether any updating or correcting of information is appropriate. The DWG 
will review and update, if necessary, this disclosure policy on an annual basis. Finally, the 
DWG will react to developments and events that affect the City and notify its 
dissemination agent or the SEC, when appropriate. 

 
The City’s primary spokesperson related to the City’s financial information, debt and 
financings, and other financial reports and events is the City’s Finance Director. Others 
within the City may, from time to time, be designated by the Finance Director as 
spokespersons on behalf of the City and respond to specific inquiries. It is essential that 
the DWG be fully apprised of all material developments of the City in order to evaluate, 
discuss those events and determine the appropriateness and timing for release. 

 
The City or its designated agent will provide continuing disclosure documents and related 
information to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s EMMA System 
http://dataport.emma.msrb.org. The continuing disclosure documents, which include 
annual financial statements, operating data of the City and event notices, will be posted 
to the EMMA website by the City’s Disclosure Dissemination Agent. 
 

45



2  

D. Annual Reporting Date Requirements 
 
The Finance Director or the designee is responsible for maintaining a list of continuing 
disclosure requirements, both required and voluntary for each of the City’s financings.  

 
E. Event Notice Requirements 

 
1. For any debt issues (subject to SEC Rule 15c2-12) issued on or after December 

1, 2010, the following events would need to be provided to the City’s Disclosure 
Dissemination Agent, for further filing with the MSRB, within ten (10) business days 
of their occurrence. In addition, SEC has updated the list of items which must be 
disclosed as a Material Event with two new items, effective February 27, 2019. The 
two new items are listed below. 

 
Unless otherwise specified, the City’s Finance Director will be responsible for 
monitoring the occurrence of these events, determining (if necessary) their 
materiality, and notifying the Dissemination Agent of the occurrence of an event 
for further filing with the MSRB: 

 
 Principal and interest payment delinquencies 
 Non-payment related defaults, if material 
 Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulty 
 Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulty 
 Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 
 Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the IRS of proposed or final 

determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 
TEB) or other material notices of determination with respect to the tax status 
of the security or other material events affecting the tax status of the security 

 Modifications to rights of security holders, if material 

 Bond calls, if material, and tender offers 
 Defeasances 
 Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

securities, if material 
 Rating changes 
 Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated 

person 

 The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an 
obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination 
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant 

46



3  

to its terms, if material 
 Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 

a trustee, if material. 

New Material Events effective February 27, 2019. The following applies to new 
bond issues after the effective date in which there is a continuing disclosure 
undertaking. The two new Material Events must be listed and reported on EMMA 
subsequent to that issuance. 

1. Incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other 
similar terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which 
affect security holders, if material; and  

2. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the obligated 
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

Examples of items that must be reported on EMMA within 10 business days of their 
occurrence, if deemed material, are bank loans, private placements, financing 
leases, or interest rate swaps or other derivative instruments.  

2. For any debt issues (subject to SEC Rule 15c2-12) issued prior to December 1, 
2010, the following events, if determined to be material, would need to be provided 
to the City’s Disclosure Dissemination Agent, for further filing with the MSRB, “in a 
timely manner.” 

• Principal and interest payment delinquencies 
 

• Non-payment related defaults 
 

• Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulty 
 

• Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulty 
 

• Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 
 

• Adverse tax opinions, or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 
security 

• Modifications to rights of security holders 
 

• Bond calls 
 

• Defeasances 
 

• Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

47



4  

securities 

• Rating changes 
 

In addition, the City’s Finance Director will be responsible for providing notice, in a 
timely manner, of a failure to provide any of the City’s required annual financial 
information by the date specified in the continuing disclosure undertaking. 

 

F. Voluntary Disclosure Requirements 
 
In addition to preparing annual reports and event notices, the City may wish to keep 
investors informed by providing information that is not required to be provided under the 
Rule (for example, direct placements with banks, i.e., “bank loans”) or its continuing 
disclosure undertakings. Examples of such types of information are investments, interim 
financial information, capital improvement plans, fund balance policies, etc. and financial 
forecasts. 

 
Because providing this information is voluntary, the City’s Finance Director will monitor 
for events which may impact the City, so that a determination can be made if the event 
should be disclosed. 

 
The below list is comprised of events and financial disclosure which the MSRB has 
suggested issuers may wish to voluntarily disclose. Some of these are not applicable to 
the City’s bonds, but the DWG may wish to consider filing some of these with the City’s 
Disclosure Dissemination Agent for further filing with the MSRB: 

 
1. “amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking;” 

 
2. “change in obligated person;” 

 
3. “notice to investors pursuant to bond documents;” 

 
4. “certain communications from the Internal Revenue Service;” 

 
5. “secondary market purchases;” 

 
6. “bid for auction rate or other securities;” 

 
7. “capital or other financing plan;” 

 
8. “litigation/enforcement action;” 

 
9. “change of tender agent, remarketing agent, or other on-going party;” 

 

48



5  

10. “derivative or other similar transaction;” 
 

11. “other event-based disclosures;” 
 

12. quarterly/monthly financial information;” 

 
13. “change in fiscal year/timing of annual disclosure;” 

 
14. “change in accounting standard;” 

 
15. “interim/additional financial information/operating data;” 

 
16. “budget;” 

 

17. “investment/debt/financial policy;” 
 

18. “information provided to rating agency, credit/liquidity provider or 
other third party;” 

 
19. “consultant reports;” and 

 
20. “other financial/operating data.” 

 
Evidence of the filings for each of the above event notices, when made, shall be 
maintained by the Finance Director and the City’s Disclosure Dissemination Agent. 

 
Also, if the City maintains an “Investor Relations” website, or routinely posts City member 
packages, including interim financial information, capital improvement plans, etc. on its 
website, the City’s Finance Director should review and, in some cases, the DWG should 
“reissue” the posted material with an explanatory note (e.g., the interim financial 
information is presented on a cash, as opposed to accrual basis). 

 
G. Third Party Information/Quarterly Disclosure Requirements 

 
Currently, the City is not required to file interim financial information. In the future, if such 
filings are required in continuing disclosure undertakings, the City’s Finance Director will 
notify the Disclosure Dissemination Agent for assistance when these filings become 
necessary. 

 
H. Coordinating Continuing Disclosure with Primary Disclosure 

 
It is expected that the DWG will be responsible for collecting and reviewing information 
set forth in official statements prepared in connection with new bond offerings. 

 

49



6  

The “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from the prior year’s audited financial 
statements should be reviewed to ensure that the unaudited information which was 
provided in that portion of the financial statements is updated. 

 
Careful review of the long-term debt notes in the financial statements and the checking of 
all bond ratings before each EMMA filing should be made. Measures should be taken to 
assure information publicly available to investors is accurate. 

 
Coordination between the DWG and the City’s website manager is essential before 
posting of any financial information is made. 

 

I. Website Disclosure 

 
It is expected that the City will be responsible for monitoring website content and 
reviewing the information set forth on such website. Appropriate “disclaimer” language on 
the website will be considered in order to educate the viewer in terms of where information 
intended for investors can be found and the investor’s acknowledgement of the limitations 
of such reliance. Coordination between the DWG and City officials will occur before the 
release of any public statements about any financial condition of the City. 

 
J. Training for Employees and Issuer Officials 

 
For City officials, compliance with federal securities law should be considered as 
important as compliance with local public meetings and records laws. An annual review 
of the continuing disclosure policies of the City may be attended by members of the DWG. 

 
Additionally, on-going education will involve guest speakers, webinars and conference 
attendance, as well as, continuing legal and accounting education courses. Applicable 
policies and procedures will be updated by the City to reflect such changes on an as- 
needed basis. 

 
 

K. Effective Date 

 
This Policy shall become effective immediately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  November 7, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Human Resources  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Voting Results 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  CALENDAR YEAR 2019 FLOATING HOLIDAY 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

December 26
th

, 2019 was selected by employee vote to be the CY19 Floating Holiday.  

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve December 26, 2019, as the CY19 Floating Holiday 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

51



52



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  November 7, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PRESENTATION OF SERVICE WEAPON 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PRESENTATION OF SERVICE WEAPONS TO RETIRING 

MEMBERS OF THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council authorization to present service weapons to retiring 

members of the police department to recognize the member’s credited service to the City of Apopka and 

its citizens. As part of an audit process it was determined that this had not been brought before City 

Council at the time of the member’s retirement.  

 

Robert Hippler 

 April 28, 1993 to June 20, 2010 17 years of service (currently a reserve) 

John McConnell 

 July 26, 1995 to Dec. 18, 2015 20 years of service  (recently retired from reserves) 

 

The weapons presented were: Glock 21 Semi-Automatic Handguns with Serial Numbers YDG747 

(Hippler) and YBW918 (McConnell).  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Not Applicable.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Police Chief’s presentation to the retiring members of the agency in recognition of their 

years of service to the City of Apopka and its citizens. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

53



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  November 7, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Request Memo 

       OTHER:              
  

 

SUBJECT: FEDERAL LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 
 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE A $10,000.00 EXPENDITURE FROM FEDERAL LAW 

ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS FOR INVESTIGATIVE BUYS AND 

UNDERCOVER OPERATIONS. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval for the expenditure of funds from the Federal 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $10,000 for investigative buys and undercover 

operations. These funds will be drawn down throughout the year as needed in $2,500 increments. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund     Operating  (103.2291.521.5200)  $10,000 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $10,000.00 from the Federal Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

54



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  November 7, 2018 

 

To:  Honorable Bryan Nelson and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval for the Finance Department to disburse $10,000.00 

of Law Enforcement Trust Funds drawn down in $2,500 increments to the criminal investigations 

custodian. These funds will be used to conduct investigative narcotics investigations and further other 

associated undercover operations. 

 

 

 

Respectfully, 

 
 

Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

55



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration     

         SPECIAL REPORTS            EXHIBITS:       Lake McCoy Map  

___   OTHER:                  Cost Estimate 
  

 

SUBJECT: LAKE McCOY HYDRILLA TREATMENT 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF 5 GALLONS OF SONAR HERBICIDE IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $9,896.10 FOR THE LAKE McCOY HYDRILLA 

TREATMENT. 
  
SUMMARY: 

On September 19, 2016, Orange County reached out to the City of Apopka regarding Lake 

McCoy and the possibility of an interlocal agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange County 

regarding a cost-sharing arrangement for lake management services. Currently, there is no agreement at 

this time.  
 

Lake McCoy is a 109-acre Lake located both within the limits of unincorporated Orange County and 

the City of Apopka.  Approximately 45 percent of the Lake is located within the City of Apopka and 

the remaining 55 percent is located within unincorporated Orange County. 
 

Lake McCoy residents within unincorporated Orange County belong to a Municipal Service Benefit 

Unit (MSBU) to help fund lake management activities in order to maintain the quality of the lake.  A 

MSBU is an assessment district created to fund a one/time or on going essential public service.  In order 

for the Lake McCoy residents within the city limits to participate and provide input on lake management 

activities through this MSBU an agreement must be executed with the County. 
 

City staff is currently working with Orange County on an agreement that Lake McCoy city residents will 

be included in the Orange County - Lake McCoy MSBU.  In the meantime, the hydrilla in the lake has 

been very aggressive and the County plans to provide treatment to the lake in mid-November.  The total 

treatment cost to the lake is $24,471.55.  The County has reached out to the City and requested that the 

City purchase 5 gallons of Sonar herbicide in the amount $9,896.10 (which is approx. 40% of total 

treatment cost).   
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 18-19 General Fund Budget    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
Authorize the purchase of 5 gallons of Sonar herbicide in the amount of $9,896.10 for the Lake McCoy 

hydrilla treatment.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
56



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: School Concurrency Agreement 

 OTHER:    
  

 

SUBJECT:  APOPKA FARMS RESIDENTAL SUBDIVSION SCHOOL 

CONCURRENCY MITIGATION AGREEMENT 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE SCHOOL CONCURRENCY MITIGATION 

AGREEMENT FOR APOPKA FARMS SUBDIVISION 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
New residential development applications are reviewed by Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) for 
their impact placed on existing student capacity at public schools. This school impact analysis, called 
school concurrency, occurs at the time of a Final Development Plan and Plat application. In 2008 the 
City of Apopka entered into an interlocal agreement with the Orange County School Board to address 
public school facility planning and implementation of school concurrency (hereafter School 
Agreement). As a party to this School Agreement, the City becomes a party to this Agreement. 
Therefore, City Council must accept the Agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign it to allow OCPS 
to implement the mitigation plan. When school enrollment is over capacity at the public schools serving 
additional students generated by a proposed residential development, a new development must have a 
school concurrency mitigation analysis to determine additional cost of school impacts the proposed 
development will generate above that considered by the school impact fee. The developer pays these 
additional fees according to the conditions of the school concurrency mitigation fee. (See exhibit.) 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Windward Hills, LLC c/o FHC Development 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER:  Luke Classen, P.E., Appian Engineering, LLC 
 
LOCATION:    4145 W. Orange Blossom Trail 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 101 single family homes; developed in one phase 
 
DEVELOPABLE AREA:  67.76 +/- acres  
 
SCHOOL ATTENDENCE ZONES: Wolf Lake Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, Apopka High 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  
57



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

APOPKA FARMS - SCHOOL CONCURRENCY MITIGATION AGREEMENT  

PAGE 2 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 7, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Approve the Apopka Farms Concurrency Mitigation Agreement 

and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement. 

58



1 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034

 After recording return to: 

Jamie Boerger, AICP

Orange County Public Schools 

6501 Magic Way, Building 200 
Orlando, Florida 32809 

---------------------[SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDING DATA]------------------------ 

SCHOOL CONCURRENCY  

MITIGATION AGREEMENT 

APK-18-009 

Apopka Farms 

Parcel ID 35-20-27-0000-00-020; -053; -006 

THIS SCHOOL CONCURRENCY MITIGATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is 

entered into by THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA a body corporate 

and political subdivision of the State of Florida, (“School Board”); CITY OF APOPKA, a 

municipal corporation of the State of Florida, (“City”) and WINDWARD HILLS, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company, whose address is P.O. Box 1015, Windermere, Florida 34786 

(collectively, the “Applicant”), collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the School Board, Orange County, and the municipalities within Orange 

County have entered into that certain “Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement For Public 

School Facility Planning and Implementation of Concurrency” (the “Interlocal Agreement”), and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 16.6 of the Interlocal Agreement, an applicant submitting 

a School Concurrency Determination Application for approval of a Site Plan that will generate 

additional students in a School Concurrency Service Area in which there is insufficient Available 

School Capacity to accommodate the anticipated additional students must enter into a 

Proportionate Share Mitigation Agreement to prevent school overcrowding attributable to the 

anticipated additional students generated by the Residential Development as specified in the 

Interlocal Agreement;  

WHEREAS, an Applicant must submit the School Concurrency Determination Application 

along with a Development Analysis which identifies the proposed location of the Residential 

Development, the number of Residential Units that will be created, a phasing schedule (if 

applicable), a map demonstrating land use and zoning classifications for the Applicant’s property, 

as well as all other information required pursuant to Section 16.5 of the Interlocal Agreement, to 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, Applicant is the fee simple owner, or authorized agent of the owner, of that 

certain tract of land, as more particularly described on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and 

59



  2 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”), the location of which is illustrated by a map 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and incorporated herein by reference; and  

 WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted a School Concurrency Determination 

Application and Development Analysis to the City in connection with a proposal to obtain 

approval for a plat in order to develop up to 101 single family Residential Units on the Property 

(the “Project”) and the City has forwarded the School Concurrency Determination Application and 

Development Analysis to the School Board; and  

 WHEREAS, the School Board has reviewed and evaluated the Applicant’s School 

Concurrency Determination Application and Development Analysis as required by Section 18.6 

of the Interlocal Agreement, and has determined that based on the current adopted Level of Service 

standards for the School Concurrency Service Areas within which the Property is located and the 

anticipated new School Capacity that will be available in the first three (3) years of the current 

District Facilities Work Program to serve the proposed Residential Development, there is 

insufficient Available School Capacity at the middle school level to serve the new single-family 

Residential Units within the School Concurrency Service Areas for the Project or within adjacent 

School Concurrency Service Areas as determined by an Adjacency Review; and  

  WHEREAS, approving the School Concurrency Determination Application without 

requiring Proportionate Share Mitigation for the impacts of the proposed Project will either create 

or worsen school overcrowding in the applicable School Concurrency Service Areas; and  

 WHEREAS, the Applicant has agreed to enter into this Agreement with the School Board 

and City to provide Proportionate Share Mitigation proportionate to the demand for Public School 

Facilities to be created by the Project, as more particularly set forth herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants contained 

herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:  

 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct 

and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 2.  DEFINITION OF MATERIAL TERMS. Any capitalized terms used herein but not 

defined shall have the meaning attributed to such term in the Interlocal Agreement. 

 3.  LEGALLY BINDING COMMITMENT. This Agreement constitutes a legally 

binding commitment by the Applicant to mitigate for the impacts of the new Residential Units for 

which the Applicant is seeking approval pursuant to the School Concurrency Determination 

Application and is intended to satisfy the requirements of Florida law and the Orange County 

Code. 

 4.  PROPORTIONATE SHARE MITIGATION.  The Parties hereby agree that the 

Applicant shall provide Proportionate Share Mitigation in order to meet the demand for School 

Capacity created by the Project and to provide additional capacity for middle school students, as 

follows, in accordance with Section 19.2 of the Interlocal Agreement: 

60



  3 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

  Payment in the amount of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY NINE THOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED SEVENTY THREE AND 54/100 DOLLARS ($259,573.54) to cover the 

Proportionate Share Mitigation associated with providing the necessary school capacity for the 

Project (the “Proportionate Share”) to the School Board. Such payment shall be due and payable 

prior to the time the plat for the Property is approved and has been calculated in accordance with 

the formula found in Section 17.2 of the Interlocal Agreement.  To the extent the Applicant’s 

proposed Residential Development is subject to a Capacity Enhancement Agreement, any capacity 

enhancement mitigation paid pursuant to such agreement will be applied as a credit to the 

Proportionate Share Mitigation required for the Project.  Such credit will be subtracted from the 

total Proportionate Share Mitigation required pursuant to this Agreement and the Interlocal 

Agreement.   

 5. USE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE. The School Board shall direct the 

Proportionate Share to a School Capacity improvement identified in the capital improvement 

schedule in the five (5) year district work plan of the School Board’s District Facilities Work 

Program which mitigates the impacts from the proposed Residential Development.  If such a 

School Capacity improvement does not exist in the District Facilities Work Program, the School 

Board may, in its sole discretion, add a School Capacity improvement to its District Facilities 

Work Program to mitigate the impacts from the Project, as provided in Section 17.6 of the 

Interlocal Agreement.   

 6. IMPACT FEE CREDIT.  The Proportionate Share Mitigation paid pursuant to 

Section 4 of this Agreement shall be credited against the School Impact Fee on a dollar for dollar 

basis at fair market value, up to the amount of the School Impact Fee Credit (hereinafter defined).  

Upon payment of the Proportionate Share Mitigation., the School Board shall notify the 

City to establish a School Impact Fee credit account in the amount of TWO HUNDRED TWO 

THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SIXTEEN AND 33/100 DOLLARS ($202,116.33) based upon 

23.00 Equivalent Residential Units (as defined in Section 30-622 of the Orange County 

Code)(“Impact Fee Credit Amount”). Applicant shall not be entitled to a credit or refund for any 

portion of the Proportionate Share Mitigation in excess of the Impact Fee Credit Amount. 

 7. ISSUANCE OF SCHOOL CONCURRENCY RECOMMENDATION.  Upon final 

execution of this Agreement by all Parties hereto, this Agreement will serve as the Applicant’s 

Capacity Encumbrance Letter in accordance with Section 16.7 of the Interlocal Agreement. 

8. SCHOOL CAPACITY ENCUMBRANCE AND RESERVATION.  Upon final 

execution of this Agreement by all Parties hereto, this Agreement will serve as the Applicant’s 

Capacity Encumbrance Letter that School Capacity will be available for the Project.  This is in 

accordance with Section 16.6(g) of the Interlocal Agreement.  

At such time as Applicant has prepaid the School Impact Fees further described in Section 

6 of this Agreement, and paid the applicable installment(s) of the School Capacity Reservation Fee 

described in Section 9 below, School Capacity shall be reserved for 101 single family Residential 

Units; if the Applicant fails to make any of the required School Capacity Reservation Fee payments 

described in Paragraph 9 below or if this Agreement is terminated, such reserved School Capacity 

shall lapse and be returned to the applicable Concurrency Service Area.  

61



  4 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

  9. CAPACITY RESERVATION FEE.  The Applicant shall also be required 

to pay a School Capacity Reservation Fee for the Project in accordance with Section 30-599 of the 

Orange County Code. The Applicant shall pay the School Capacity Reservation Fee further 

described below. 

 a. 1st Installment due within six (6) months of the Effective Date of this Agreement:  

  $ 295,728.00 

b. 2nd Installment due 18 months from the Effective Date of this Agreement: 

$295,728.00  

c. 3rd Installment due 30 months from the Effective Date of this Agreement: 

$295,728.00 

  Notwithstanding the schedule provided by this Section, Applicant may prepay any 

or all of the School Capacity Reservation Fees in advance.  School Capacity Reservation Fees paid 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be credited towards School Impact Fees as provided in Section 

30-599 of the County Code.  Additionally, Applicant may apply the Impact Fee Credit Amount 

against any one of the foregoing installment payments. 

 10. TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall terminate and Applicant shall forfeit any 

administrative fees paid, as well as any capacity encumbered or reserved under the following 

circumstances, unless the City and the School Board agree to an extension of the Applicant’s 

School Concurrency Mitigation Agreement: 

  a. The Applicable Local Government does not approve the Plat within one 

hundred eighty (180) days from approval of the Site Plan by the City Council. In such event, all 

Proportionate Share Mitigation paid by the Applicant shall be refunded to the Applicant by the 

School Board.     

b. The Applicant fails to proceed in good faith and secure at least one Building 

Permit for a unit other than a model home within three (3) years of recording of the plat.  In such 

case, this Agreement shall be terminated and any encumbered or reserved school capacity shall be 

returned to its applicable capacity bank.  The Applicant will not be entitled to a refund of any 

portion of the Proportionate Share Mitigation paid under this Agreement, and will only be entitled 

to receive a 90% refund of the Capacity Reservation Fee. 

  11. COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND. This Agreement shall be binding, 

and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns of the 

parties, and shall be a covenant running with the Property and be binding upon the successors and 

assigns of the Owner and upon any person, firm, corporation, or entity who may become the 

successor in interest to the Property. 

 12. NOTICES.  Any notice delivered with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing 

and be deemed to be delivered (whether or not actually received) (i) when hand delivered to the 

person(s) hereinafter designated, or (ii) upon deposit of such notice in the United States Mail, 

postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the person at the address set 

forth opposite the party’s name below, or to such other address or other person as the party shall 

have specified by written notice to the other party delivered in accordance herewith: 

62



  5 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

 

School Board  School Board of Orange County, Florida  

Attn: Superintendent  

 445 West Amelia Street 

 Orlando, Florida 32801 

 

With a Copy to:  Orange County Public Schools 

Attn: Facilities Planning Department 

   6501 Magic Way, Building 200 

 Orlando, Florida 32809 

 

Applicant:  Windward Hills, LLC 

   Attn:  Frank Cawthon 

   P.O. Box 1015 

   Windermere, Florida 34786 

 

 

With a Copy to: Shutts & Bowen, LLP 

Attn:  Juli James 

300 S. Orange Avenue, Suite 1600 

Orlando, Florida 32801 
 

City:  City of Apopka 

Attn: Planning Department 

120 E. Main Street 

Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

 13. CAPTIONS AND PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. Captions and paragraph headings 

contained in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only. They in no way define, 

describe, extend or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement. 

  14. NO WAIVER. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective 

unless it is in writing, and signed by the party against whom it is asserted. Any such written waiver 

shall only be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates, and shall not be deemed to be 

a continuing or future waiver.  

 15. EXHIBITS. All Exhibits attached hereto are a part of this Agreement and are fully 

incorporated herein by this reference.  

 16. AMENDMENTS. No modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms or 

conditions contained herein shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless in writing and executed 

by all the Parties to this Agreement. School Board does hereby confer upon the Superintendent, or 

Superintendent’s designee, the authority to amend this Agreement, provide any consent, notice or 

approval set forth herein or otherwise exercise any right or election of the School Board granted 

or reserved herein, without formal approval from School Board, provided such amendment or 

consent does not substantially alter or modify the terms herein. Further, the Superintendent, or 

Superintendent’s designee, shall have the authority, without further approval from the School 

63



  6 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

Board, to finalize the form of all agreements, assignments, and similar documents set forth in this 

Agreement, and the School Board’s signature of those agreements, assignments, and similar 

documents is hereby authorized. The extension of any payment or deadline required hereunder for 

less than one (1) year shall not be considered to substantially alter or modify the terms herein. If, 

in the sole judgment of School Board, such amendment or consent does substantially alter or 

amend this Agreement, then School Board shall have the option of declaring the amendment or 

consent void ab initio, thus rendering the amendment or consent without any legal force and effect.   

 17. ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER OF RIGHTS. The Applicant may assign its rights, 

obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement to a third-party purchaser of all or any part 

of fee simple title to the Property; provided, however, that any such assignment shall be in writing 

and shall require the prior written consent of all of the Parties hereto, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.  Such consent may be conditioned upon the 

receipt by the other parties hereto of the written agreement of the assignee to comply with 

conditions and procedures to aid in the monitoring and enforcement of the assignee’s performance 

of the Applicant’s obligations with regard to Proportionate Share Mitigation under this Agreement. 

The assignor under such assignment shall furnish the Parties with a copy of the written assignment 

within ten (10) days of the date of execution of same. 

 The School Board hereby consents to the assignment of this Agreement to KB Home 

Orlando LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and by signing the Joinder and Consent to 

this Agreement, KB Home Orlando LLC, for itself and on behalf of any affiliate that may become 

an assignee of this Agreement, hereby agrees upon acquisition of the Property to agree to all rights 

and obligations of Applicant hereunder and further agrees to assume and comply with all 

conditions and procedures to aid in the monitoring and enforcement of the assignee’s performance 

of the Applicant’s obligations with regard to the applicable Capacity Reservation Fees and 

Proportionate Share Mitigation under this Agreement, including, without limitation, under 

Sections 4, 6 and Section 9 of this Agreement. 

 18. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which 

may be deemed an original, and all of which together constitute one and the same agreement.  

 19. RECORDING OF THIS AGREEMENT. The School Board agrees to record this 

Agreement, at Applicant’s expense, in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.  

 20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement among 

the Parties with respect to the subject matter addressed herein, and it supersedes all prior and 

contemporaneous negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, among the Parties.  

 21. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid or unenforceable provision will be 

stricken from the Agreement, and the balance of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect 

as long as doing so would not affect the overall purpose or intent of the Agreement.  

 22. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be 

construed, controlled, and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Florida and in 

64



  7 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

accordance with the Orange County Code and venue for any action to enforce the provisions of 

this Agreement shall be in the Ninth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida. 

 23. ATTORNEY’S FEES. In the event any party hereto brings an action or proceeding, 

including any counterclaim, cross-claim, or third party claim, against any other party hereto arising 

out of this Agreement, each party in such action or proceeding, including appeals therefrom, shall 

be responsible for its own attorney fees. 

 24. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date when 

the last one of the parties has properly executed this Agreement as determined by the date set forth 

immediately below their respective signatures (the “Effective Date”). 

25. PRE-PAYMENT, MITIGATION & CAPACITY RESERVATION FORMS. This 

Agreement requires the Applicant to pay a Proportionate Share Mitigation and a portion of the 

Capacity Reservation Fee prior to the recording of a Plat.  The form attached hereto as Exhibit 

“C,” must be completed and returned to the School Board’s Facilities Planning Department with 

all fees due hereunder, including, but not limited to, applicable Capacity Reservation Fees and 

Proportionate Share Mitigation. This form must be completed and returned to the Facilities 

Planning Department, in addition to all fees payable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, to 

satisfy Sections 4 and Section 9 of this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 
  

65



  8 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective duly authorized representatives on the dates set forth below each 

signature:   

 

 

Signed and sealed in the presence of: 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

______________________________________ 

Print Name: ___________________________ 

 

 

“SCHOOL BOARD” 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate 

and political subdivision of the State of 

Florida 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

         William E. Sublette, its Chairman 

 

 

Date:________________________________ 

  

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 

    ) s.s.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

_________________, 2018, by William E. Sublette, Chairman of The School Board of Orange 

County, Florida, a body corporate and political subdivision of the State of Florida, on behalf of 

The School Board, who is personally known to me or had produced 

_________________________ (type of identification) as identification. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA  

       Print Name:_______________________ 

       Commission No.:__________________ 

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP    Expires:__________________________ 

 

 

 

 

[ADDITIONAL SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 

  

66



  9 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

      THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE 

      COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate   

Signed and sealed in the presence of:  and political subdivision of the State of Florida    

 

       

 

       Attest:       

Print Name:      Barbara M. Jenkins, Ed.D. as its 

      Secretary and Superintendent 

       

Print Name:     Dated:       

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 

    ) s.s.: 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

_________________, 2018, by Barbara M. Jenkins, ED.D.as Superintendent The School Board of 

Orange County, Florida, a body corporate and political subdivision of the State of Florida, on 

behalf of The School Board, who is personally known to me or has produced 

__________________________________ (type of identification) as identification. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA  

       Print Name:_______________________ 

       Commission No.:__________________ 

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP    Expires:__________________________ 

 

 

 

Reviewed and approved by Orange County 

Public School’s Chief Facilities Officer 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

John T. Morris 

Chief Facilities Officer 

 

Date: _________________________, 2018 

Approved as to form and legality by legal 

counsel to The School Board of Orange 

County, Florida, exclusively for its use and 

reliance. 

 

_____________________________________ 

Laura L. Kelly, Staff Attorney III/Planning 

and Real Estate  

 

Date: ___________________________, 2018 

 

 

 

 

67



68



  11 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

      “CITY” 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a municipal 

corporation of the State of Florida. 

 

      By: Mayor      

      Print Name________________________________ 

      Title:________________________________     

       

Date:_______________________________ 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

By:______________________________ 

      City Clerk      {Corporate Seal} 

Date:____________________________ 

  

69



70



 

  13 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

Exhibit “A” – Legal Description 

PARCEL 1:  

The North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 36, Township 20 South, Range 27 

East, Orange County, Florida.  

AND  

The Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 36, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, Orange 

County, Florida, Less and Except the South 689 feet of the West 125 feet of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Northwest 1/4 of said Section 36.  

More particularly described as: 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, Section 36, Township 20 

South, Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida, said point being the Point of Beginning; thence run North 

89 degrees 27 minutes 12 seconds East, along the South line of the South 689 feet of the West 125 feet of 

said Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, a distance of 125.15 feet; thence North 03 degrees 21 minutes 

25 seconds West, along the East line of said South 689 feet of the West 125 feet, a distance of 689.83 feet 

to the Northeast corner of said South 689 feet of the West 125 feet; thence South 89 degrees 27 minutes 

12 seconds West, along the North line of said South 689 feet of the West 125 feet, a distance of 125.15 

feet; thence North 03 degrees 21 minutes 25 seconds West, along the West line of the aforesaid Southwest 

1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, a distance of 632.58 feet to the Northwest comer of said Southwest 1/4 of the 

Northwest 1/4; thence North 89 degrees 27 minutes 11 seconds East, along the North line of said 

Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, a distance of 1,324.49 feet to the Northeast corner of said Southwest 

1/4 of the Northwest 1/4; thence South 03 degrees 07 minutes 47 seconds East, along the East line of said 

Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4, a distance of 1,322.18 feet to the Southeast corner of said Southwest 

1/4 of the Northwest 1/4; thence South 02 degrees 57 minutes 34 seconds East, along the East line of the 

North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of the aforesaid Section 36, a distance of 657.81 feet 

to the Southeast corner of said North 1/2; thence South 89 degrees 37 minutes 08 seconds West, along the 

South line of said North 1/2, a distance ofl,318.75 feet to the Southwest corner of said North 1/2; thence 

North 03 degrees 01 minute 02 seconds West, along the West line of said North 1/2, a distance of 654.03 

feet to the Point of Beginning.  

PARCEL 2:  

The West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 35, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, 

Orange County, Florida, lying North and East of the Seaboard Air Line Railroad, Less and Except the 

South 2 1/2 acres thereof. Also, Less and Except that portion of the above lands conveyed to the State 

Road Department of the State of Florida, by virtue of Quit Claim Deed recorded in Deed Book 589, Page 

426, Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

AND  

Begin at the Northeast comer of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 35, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, 

Orange County, Florida, thence run West 10 chains; thence run South 448.89 feet; thence run 

Northeasterly to a point on the East line of said Section 411.84 feet South of the Point of Beginning; 

thence run North to the Point of Beginning.  

AND  

 

71



 

  14 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

Exhibit “A” – Legal Description 

The South 40.00 feet of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 35, Township 20 South, Range 

27 East, Orange County, Florida, Less and Except the East 660.00 feet thereof. Also, Less and Except any  

portion of the subject property lying within the road right-of-way for West Orange Blossom Trail (State 

Road 500, US Highway 441) on West. 

 

 

 

  

72



 

  15 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

Exhibit “B” – Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73



Exhibit “C”-Forms 

 

  16 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

 

74



Exhibit “C”-Forms 

 

  17 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

 

75



Exhibit “C”-Forms 

 

  18 

APK-18-009 Apopka Farms 

ORLDOCS 16459548 2 19993.0034  

 

76



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 
  

 

SUBJECT:  SAN SEBASTIAN RESERVE (112 LOTS) 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A SEWER 

AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT FOR SAN SEBASTIAN RESERVE 

(112 LOTS) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for San Sebastian Reserve, 

located North of Lester Road and West of Rock Springs Road. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for San Sebastian 

Reserve. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

77



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

SEWER & WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT – SAN SEBASTIAN RESERVE 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 

SAN SEBASTIAN RESERVE 
A. D. Raulerson Sr. A. D. Raulerson, Jr and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey 
Parcel ID No: 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040; 28-20-28-0000-00-077 

Total Acres: 23.14 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 
  

 

SUBJECT:  VISTA RESERVE (153 LOTS) 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A SEWER 

AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT FOR VISTA RESERVE (153 LOTS) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Vista Reserve, located 

one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Vista Reserve. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

110



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

SEWER & WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT – VISTA RESERVE 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 

VISTA RESERVE 
Pulte Home Company LLC 

Parcel ID No: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 
Total Acres: 61.1 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:           Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: GEOTECHNICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE FIRST EXTENSION OF THE GEOTECHNICAL AND 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACTS TO UNIVERSAL 

ENGINEERING SCIENCES AND TERRACON CONSULTING 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On April 19, 2017, the City Council awarded Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services 

contracts to Universal Engineering Sciences and Terracon Consulting, for one year, with the option to 

extend the contracts for two additional one-year extensions 

 

The services will be performed on an as needed basis. This is the first extension of each contract and is 

requested to be retroactive to April 19, 2018. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the first extension of the consulting services contracts for the Geotechnical and Environmental 

Engineering Services contract to Universal Engineering Sciences and Terracon Consulting, for one year. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

143



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE FIRST EXTENSION OF THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 

SERVICES CONTRACTS TO WRIGHT-PIERCE, TETRATECH, AND REISS 

ENGINEERING FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On November 15, 2017, the City Council awarded Professional Engineering Services Contract to Wright 

Pierce, Tetratech and Reiss Engineering, to provide the City with a consulting services contract beginning 

December, with two one-year extensions. 

 

The services will be performed on an as needed basis. This is the first extension of each contract. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the first extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Professional Engineering 

Services with Wright Pierce, Tetratech, and Reiss Engineering for one year. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

144



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:           Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: MOBILE PUMP FOR UTILITY MAINTENANCE 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF A MOBILE PUMP FROM THOMPSON 

PUMP AND MANUFACTURING COMPANY, INC. 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Thompson Pump and Manufacturing Company, Inc., through the 

Florida Sheriffs Association Contract for the purchase of a new mobile pump for the Utility Maintenance 

Division for $40,407.  Due to growth and increase in capacity in this segment of the utility service area, 

the need for emergency mobile pumping abilities has become critical. The mobile pump will aide in the 

event of a pump or power failure and minimize the opportunity for a sewer overflow to occur.  This 

mobile pump will replace an existing 1998 pump.   

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 401 – Utility Maintenance Budget    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of a mobile pump for the Utility Maintenance Division from Thompson Pump and 

Manufacturing Company, Inc., for $40,407. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

145



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:           Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: REPLACEMENT PUMPS AT TWO SANITARY SEWER LIFT STATIONS 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF TWO (2) PUMPS FROM XYLEM WATER 

SOLUTIONS USA, INC. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc., through the Florida Sheriffs 

Association Contract for the purchase of two (2) new pumps for replacement one (1) for $32,928 the other 

for $15,064 for a total of $47,992. Due to growth and increases in capacity of the sanitary sewer service 

areas, it is necessary to replace these pumps to provide the correct pump design conditions to adequately 

serve the areas. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 401 – Utility Plant Maintenance Budget 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of two (2) new replacement pumps for sanitary sewer lift stations from Xylem 

Water Solutions USA, Inc., for $47,992. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

146



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:           Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY REPAIRS OF THE PRESSURE-SUSTAINING VALVE AT THE 

NORTH SHORE REUSE WATER PUMP STATION 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE MCDADE WATERWORKS, INC., PROPOSAL TO PERFORM 

EMERGENCY REPAIRS OF THE PRESSURE-SUSTAINING VALVE AT THE 

NORTH SHORE REUSE WATER PUMP STATION  
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Staff noticed that the pressure-sustaining valve at the North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station is 

malfunctioning and leaking.  This valve is needed to properly control the flow of water into the ground 

storage tank from the distribution system.  The current installation is failing, and is no longer stopping the 

flow of water into the ground storage tank.  This is leading to wasted water and requires emergency 

repairs. 
 

Proposals from the following for an emergency replacement: 
 

 

 

Staff requests approval for McDade Waterworks, Inc., to perform the referenced emergency repairs in the 

amount of $29,700. Funding is not currently budgeted for this update in the FY 18/19 Utility Plant 

Maintenance Budget. 
 

A budget amendment for the approved funding is included in this 11/07/18 agenda via Resolution No. 

2018-24.  
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 401 – Wastewater Utility Reserves    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve McDade Waterworks, Inc. to perform the emergency repairs of the pressure-sustaining valve at 

the North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station in the amount of $29,700 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

Company Amount 

Ferguson Waterworks $32,020 

Fluid Control Specialties, Inc. $31,042 

McDade Waterworks, Inc. $29,700 

147



 
 

148



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF A VEHICLE & HEAVY EQUIPMENT  

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICES 

& POLICE DEPARTMENT 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of heavy equipment for the Public Services Department and a vehicle for the Police 

Department.  Pricing is made available through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. The pricing is 

as follows: 

 

Heavy Equipment Division Vendor Amount 

Claw Truck Grounds Maintenance Kenworth of Central Florida $165,361 

Caterpillar 420F-IT Backhoe Utility Construction Ring Power Corporation $84,402 

Ford Police Interceptor SUV Police Support Services Prestige Ford $28,006.20 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY18/19 adopted budget.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of heavy equipment through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

149



 

 

 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services  

        SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

        OTHER: Business 
  

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF UTILITY & SANITATION COMMODITIES 
 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2018/2019 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The Public Services Department purchases large amounts of various commodities in its daily operations including 

pipe, fittings, safety equipment, and chemicals throughout the year.  This purchasing is accomplished through 

piggybacking other municipalities and state contracts, which has provided the best cost savings for the quantities 

that are utilized. 
 

In accordance with Section 107.3.1.2(IV) (A), of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Staff requests approval to issue 

blanket purchase orders to the following vendors for the purchase of the referenced commodities. 
 

Division Vendor Commodity Amount Municipal Contract 

Warehouse Inventory Core & Main 
Pipe, Fittings, 

Accessories 
$1,500,000 City of St. Petersburg 

Warehouse Inventory Safety Products Safety Equipment $60,000 City of St. Petersburg 

Warehouse Inventory Grainger Tool and Misc. $60,000 State of Florida 

Water Plants 
Allied Universal 

Corporation 

Sodium 

Hypochlorite 
$30,000 Volusia County 

Wastewater 
Allied Universal 

Corporation 

Sodium 

Hypochlorite 
$89,600 Volusia County 

Wastewater 
Evoqua Water 

Technology  

Odor Control & 

Chemicals 
$125,000 Sarasota County 

Sanitation Waste Management 
Yard waste/bulky 

tipping fees 
$222,300 

City of Orlando 

Contract 

Sanitation 
Orange County 

Utilities 
MSW tipping fees $995,400 Evaluated Source 

Sanitation 
Waste 

Management/RCA 

Recycling 

Processing fees 
$101,300 

Orange County 

Contract 

Sanitation People Ready Temp labor $94,600 Evaluated Source 

Sanitation Rehrig Pacific 
Garbage/Recycling 

Carts 
$182,500 City of Miami Contract 

Sanitation Wastequip Garbage dumpsters $55,900 Evaluated Source 

Sanitation 
Rehrig Pacific  

bear carts 

Bear resistant 

garbage carts 
$105,016 

Volusia County 

Contract 
 

 

 150



  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 401- Utility Operating Fund:  Included and approved in the FY 18/19 budget. 
Fund 402 – Sanitation Fund: Included and approved in the FY 2018/2019 Sanitation budget: 

Florida Wildlife Commission Grant    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the issuance of blanket purchase orders to the referenced vendors for the purchase of the 

commodities listed. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

151



 

152



 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

  CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF:                  November 7, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:                   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS:            

  X    OTHER:                   Florida Hospital Lease Agreement 
        
 

SUBJECT: FLORIDA HOSPITAL (AdventHEALTH) LEASE AGREEMENT AND UCF 

AGREEMENT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE STAFF TO EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH FLORIDA 

HOSPITAL (AdventHEALTH)  

  APPROVE STAFF TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT WITH UCF FOR THE 

INCUBATOR.  
  

SUMMARY: 

Florida Hospital (AdventHEALTH) has graciously agreed to provide a 5,000 sq. ft. building at 205 N. 

Park Ave. on the campus of the “old” hospital on the north end of downtown.  This site will be able to 

provide about 12 offices/rooms for the clients and UCF to continue this valuable economic development 

program. The city is currently comparing cost estimates from the city’s continuing service general 

contractors and a preferred qualified vendor provided by the UCF incubator. 
 

On September 5, 2018 the City Council approved the funding of the renovation of this building ($45,000) 

and moving the UCF Incubator to the site ($5,000) at 205 N. Park Ave. 
  

The City of Apopka staff and Florida Hospital (AdventHEALTH) have negotiated a lease agreement for 

the building located at 205 N Park Ave., adjacent to the old Florida Hospital building.  This lease 

agreement allows the City to sub-lease the building to UCF for the Business Incubation Program.   
 

Staff is requesting the following be approved by the City Council: 

 Authorize staff to execute the attached lease Agreement with Florida Hospital (AdventHEALTH). 

 Authorize staff to amend the Agreement with UCF for the Business Incubation Program. 

 Wave permit fees for any building renovations and inspections. 

 Authorize the selection of a contractor for the renovations at Florida Hospital via evaluated source 

and lowest cost not to exceed the funding amount of $45,000.  This method of procurement is 

being proposed based on the City Center time schedule for construction. 
 

A budget amendment for the approved funding is included in this 11/07/18 agenda via Resolution No. 

2018-24.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

General Fund 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 153



 

 

 

205 N. Park Ave. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

City Council:  Approve the following items: 

 

 Authorize staff to execute the attached lease Agreement with Florida Hospital (AdventHEALTH). 

 Authorize staff to amend the Agreement with UCF for the Business Incubation Program. 

 Wave permit fees for any building review, renovations and inspections. 

 Authorize the selection of a contractor for the renovations at Florida Hospital via evaluated source 

and lowest cost not to exceed the funding amount of $45,000.  This method of procurement is 

being proposed based on the City Center time schedule for construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

154



71005\243 - # 511933 v1 

LEASE SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

 

 

 

Lessor (Name and Address):  Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc., 

  d/b/a Florida Hospital 

  1919 N. Orange Avenue 

  Orlando, Florida 32804 

 

Lessee:  The City of Apopka, Florida 

  

Leased Premises:  205 North Park Avenue, Suite 108 

  Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Permitted Use:  Administrative office space 

 

Lease Term:  MTM with 60 day notice to vacate premises 

 

Commencement Date:  October 1, 2018 

 

Termination Date:  Month to month 

 

Security Deposit:  $ -0- 

 

Base Rent:  $750.00/month 

 

 

 

 

 

 

155



71005\243 - # 511933 v1 1 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of October, 2018, 

between ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/SUNBELT, INC., a Florida not-for-profit 

corporation, doing business as FLORIDA HOSPITAL, having a place of business at 601 East 

Rollins Street, Orlando, Florida (hereinafter referred to as the “Lessor”) and the CITY OF 

APOPKA, a Florida governmental subdivision located at 120 East Main St., Apopka, FL 32703  

(hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H 

 

 

That, for and in consideration of the rental described hereinbelow and the mutual covenants 

and promises contained herein, the Lessor and the Lessee hereby covenant, promise and agree as 

follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  PREMISES.  The Lessor does hereby lease and demise unto the Lessee, and 

the Lessee does hereby rent and take as tenant under the Lessor, the 

following described premises (the “Premises”): 

 

   205 North Park Avenue, Suite 108, Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

SECTION 2.  LICENSE.  Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee a nonexclusive license for 

the use and enjoyment of those certain areas appurtenant to the Premises, 

consisting of all walkways and approaches to the Premises including the 

parking area.  The license granted hereby shall exist only during the term of 

this Lease, and shall terminate simultaneously with any termination of the 

Lease. 

 

SECTION 3.  TERM.  The term of this Lease shall begin on the Commencement Date (as 

hereinafter defined) and shall thereafter continue on a Month to Month basis 

until terminated by a ninety (90) day written notice by the Lessor or Lessee 

to the other party.  

 

   The Commencement Date shall be defined as December 1, 2018. 

 

SECTION 4.  RENT.  Lessee shall pay Lessor $750.00 per month plus applicable sales 

tax.  Rental payments are due on the 1
st
 day of each month. Lessor is 

responsible for all utilities, including electric, water and sewer. 

 

SECTION 5.  USE OF PROPERTY.  The Premises shall be used for the operation of 

administrative office space and for no other purpose, without the prior 

written consent of the Lessor. Lessee shall not use or permit the Premises or 

any part thereof to be used for any purpose in violation of any governmental 

156



 2 

law, ordinance or regulation.  Lessee shall obtain, at its expense, all permits 

and approvals required from all applicable governmental authorities for 

Lessee’s use of the Premises as contemplated herein.  Lessee agrees that 

they will park vehicles only in parking lot areas directed by the Lessor. 

 

SECTION 6.  IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS. The Lessor shall have no 

obligation to make any alterations or installations or otherwise prepare the 

Premises for Lessee’s existing use.  Lessor shall not be responsible for 

repairs of any kind to the premises. 

 

SECTION 7.  LESSEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES.    Lessee shall be responsible for all  

repairs to include windows and doors, plumbing, electrical wiring and 

fixtures, janitorial service and insurance. Lessee shall at the termination of 

this Lease, by lapse of time or otherwise, deliver the Premises to Lessor in as 

good condition as at the commencement of this Lease, ordinary wear and 

tear excepted. 

 

SECTION 8.  INSURANCE. 

 

   (a) General Insurance Requirements.  Lessee shall keep the Premises 

insured continuously during the term of the Lease by the kind of 

insurance described in, and with coverage in amounts not less than 

those specified in, the requirements set forth in Subsection (b) below. 

 Such insurance shall be written by companies of recognized stand-

ing which are authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and 

are well rated by reputable national rating organizations and naming 

as the insured parties thereunder Lessor and Lessee as their interests 

may appear. 

 

   (b) Type of Insurance Required.  Lessee shall maintain comprehensive 

general public liability insurance in an amount not less than ONE 

MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) for injury or death to one person 

per single incident, TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) for 

injuries or death for any number of persons in any one occurrence, 

and such insurance to specifically cover the Premises for damage to 

property to the full value of personal property. 

 

   (c) Delivery of Policies, Etc.  Lessee shall deliver to Lessor promptly 

after the beginning of the term of the Lease a certificate or binder 

evidencing such insurance.  Should Lessee fail to effect, maintain, or 

renew the insurance provided for above in the required amount, or to 

pay the premium therefor, or to deliver to Lessor any such certificate, 

then and in any of such events Lessor, at Lessor’s option, but without 

obligation to do so, may, upon five (5) business days’ notice to 

Lessee of the intention to do so, procure such insurance, and any 

sums expended by it to procure any such insurance shall be deemed 

Additional Rent payable to Lessor and shall on demand be forthwith 

157



 3 

paid by Lessee to Lessor.  However, it is expressly understood that 

procurement by Lessor of any such insurance shall not be deemed to 

waive or release the default of Lessee, or the right of Lessor, at 

Lessor’s option, to recover possession of the Premises by reason of 

such default as herein provided. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay 

to Lessor any and all damages which Lessor may have sustained by 

reason of the failure of Lessee to obtain and maintain such insurance. 

 It is expressly understood and agreed that Lessor shall not be 

obligated in any way or manner to insure any personal property of 

Lessee or which Lessee may have upon or within the Premises. 

 

   (d) Indemnity. Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Lessor 

from and against any and all claims, damages, expenses (including 

reasonable attorney’s fees) and liabilities of any nature whatsoever 

arising from any act, omission, neglect or default of Lessee, its 

agents, servants and assign within the Leased Premises.  Lessor 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Lessee from and against any 

and all claims, damages, expenses (including reasonable attorney’s 

fees) and liabilities of any nature whatsoever arising from any act, 

omission, neglect, default of Lessor, its agents, servants and assigns 

in or about the Leased Premises and Common Area. 

 

(e) Property Insurance.  Lessor shall bear the risk of loss to the 

Premises and improvements on the Premises, but same shall not 

include the personal property and contents of Lessee. Lessee shall 

bear the risk of loss, and purchase adequate property insurance to 

protect said contents. 

 

SECTION 9.  AD VALOREM TAXES. Lessor shall be responsible for all Ad Valorem  

   Taxes on the property. 

 

SECTION 10.  DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF THE PROPERTY.  In the event 

that the Premises is damaged by fire, tornado, hurricane or other casualty, to 

such an extent that it cannot be restored within ninety (90) days from the 

date of such damage, then either party, may at its option, terminate this 

Lease as of the date of such damage by giving written notice to the other 

party within thirty (30) days thereafter of its election to do so. In the event 

the Premises is damaged by any such cause and can be restored within 

ninety (90) days after the date of such damage, the Lessor shall, as soon after 

receipt of any insurance proceeds due as is practical, commence to restore 

the Premises to substantially the same condition as before such damage 

occurred; provided however; that the Lessor shall not be required to rebuild, 

repair or replace any improvements or alterations made by the Lessee during 

the Lease period, and provided further, that the Lessor shall rebuild to the 

same condition.  There shall be no rent during the period of restoration.  If 

Lessee cannot wait 90 days, then Lessee has the right to cancel said lease 

158



 4 

and rent.  When repaired for occupancy, Lessee has option to return to 

Premises. 

 

SECTION 11.  CONDEMNATION.  In the event that the whole of the Premises is taken for 

any public or quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance or 

regulation, or by right of eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof, 

this Lease shall terminate automatically and rent shall abate for the 

unexpired portion of the term, as of the date the physical taking occurs.  In 

the event that a portion of the Premises is so taken, and the Lessee’s use of 

the Premises is not thereby substantially and adversely affected, this Lease 

shall continue in full force and effect without abatement or diminution of 

rent.  In the event of any taking, the Lessee agrees to make no claim against 

the Lessor for the value of the unexpired portion of the term of this Lease, 

nor for any related losses thereby occasioned and further agrees not to assert, 

claim or seek any portion of any award made to Lessor; provided, however, 

the foregoing shall not limit or prohibit Lessee from maintaining its own 

claim against the condemning authority. 

 

SECTION 12.  ACCESS BY LESSOR.  The Lessor may enter upon and inspect the 

Premises during regular business hours and with reasonable notice, unless in 

an emergency situation, for the purpose of ascertaining the Lessee’s 

compliance with applicable laws, ordinances, regulations and governmental 

orders and directives and with the terms and conditions of this Lease.  

Lessor may also enter upon the Premises at any time, with reasonable notice, 

for the purpose of exhibiting the Premises to prospective tenants or 

purchasers. 

 

SECTION 13.  SUBORDINATION OF LEASE.  This Lease shall be subject and 

subordinate to all mortgages which may now or hereafter encumber any 

interest in the Premises, and each and all advances which have been made or 

may here-after be made thereunder, and to all renewals, modifications, 

consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof.  In confirmation of 

such subordination, the Lessee shall execute promptly, without costs or 

charge, any instrument or certificate the Lessor may request.  The Lessee 

hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Lessor as the Lessee’s 

attorney-in-fact to execute any such instrument or certificate for and on 

behalf of the Lessee. 

 

SECTION 14.  MECHANICS LIENS.  Nothing contained in this Lease shall be construed 

as a consent on the part of the Lessor to subject the Premises of the Lessor to 

liability under the mechanics lien law of the State of Florida.  In the event 

that a mechanics lien is filed against the Premises in connection with any 

work performed by or on behalf of the Lessee, the Lessee shall satisfy same 

within ten (10) days from the date of filing.  In the event that the Lessee fails 

to satisfy such claim within said ten (10) day period, Lessor may do so and 

may, thereafter, charge in connection with satisfaction of such claim, 

including attorney’s fees.  Further, the Lessee agrees to indemnify and save 

159



 5 

the Lessor harmless from and against any damage or loss incurred by the 

Lessor as a result of any such mechanics lien.  Without limiting the 

foregoing, the Lessee shall not cause or permit the placing of any other lien 

or encumbrance, of any nature whatsoever, against the Premises.  This 

Section shall survive the termination of this Lease. 

 

SECTION 15.  SURRENDER OF PREMISES. 

 

   In the event that the Lessee plans to vacate the building, the Lessee shall 

serve notice to the Lessor not less than sixty (60) days prior to the vacating 

date.  Whether this lease expires, or is terminated as above, no further 

obligation shall be expected nor demanded by the Lessor of the Lessee other 

than that the site be left in good order.  Lessor agrees that Lessee will have 

the right to remove chattels, whether attached to the buildings or free 

standing. 

 

   The Lessee agrees that, on the last day of the term of this Lease, or in the 

event that this Lease is otherwise terminated, on such termination date, it 

shall peaceably and quietly leave and surrender the Premises in as good 

condition as on the first day of the term of this Lease, ordinary wear and use 

excepted.  In the event that Lessee holds over beyond the expiration date of 

this Lease (or such earlier termination date), then it shall be deemed to be a 

tenant-at-sufferance, and shall vacate the Premises immediately upon receipt 

of notice from Lessor.   

 

SECTION 16.  DEFAULT BY LESSEE – LESSOR’S REMEDIES. 

 

   (a) Each of the following shall be deemed to be an Event of Default 

under this Lease: 

 

    (1) If Lessee shall fail to comply with any non-rent obligation 

hereunder, and shall fail to cure such default within thirty 

(30) days after receipt of notice thereof; or 

 

   (b) Upon the happening of any one or more of the foregoing Events of 

Default, Lessor may terminate this Lease by giving written notice 

thereof to Lessee, and such termination shall be effective thirty (30) 

days thereafter.  Lessor may take possession of the Premises on such 

effective termination date and recover charges and damages accrued 

or accruing hereunder. 

 

   (c) Upon the happening of any one or more of the foregoing Event of 

Default, or if the Premises shall be vacated or abandoned, or in the 

event of cancellation or termination hereof either by operation of law 

or by the issuance of a dispossess warrant or be the service of a 

notice of termination as above provided; Lessor may reenter the 

Premises, using such reasonable force for that purpose as may be 

160



 6 

necessary without being liable to any prosecution for said reentry or 

the use of such force, and Lessor may repair or alter the Premises in 

such manner as Lessor may deem necessary or advisable, and or relet 

the Premises or any or all parts thereof for the whole or any part of 

the remainder of the original term hereof or for a longer period, in 

Lessor’s name. Any entry or reentry by Lessor, whether had or taken 

under summary proceedings or otherwise shall not absolve or 

discharge Lessee from liability hereunder. 

 

   (d) In the event of breach by Lessee of any of the terms, covenants or 

conditions hereof, Lessor shall have the right of injunction to restrain 

the same and the right to invoke any remedy allowed by law or in 

equity, as if specific remedies, indemnity or reimbursement were not 

herein provided for. 

 

   (e) The rights and remedies given to Lessor in this Lease are distinct, 

separate and cumulative remedies and not one of them, whether or 

not exercised by Lessor, shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any of 

the others herein or by law or equity provided. 

 

SECTION 17.  NOTICES.  All notices and other communications between the parties 

hereto, permitted or required by the provisions of the Lease shall be sent by 

registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the 

addresses shown below.  The effective date of all notices shall be the date of 

receipt, as shown on the return receipt, or the date upon which delivery is 

refused, as shown on the return receipt or as certified by the postal authority. 

 

   If to the Lessor: 

 

   ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/SUNBELT, INC., 

   d/b/a FLORIDA HOSPITAL 

   ATTN:  Lisa Barrett, Director 

   1919 North Orange Avenue, Suite D 

   Orlando, Florida  32804 

 

   If to the Lessee: 

 

   UCF Business Incubation Program 

   205 N Park Avenue, Suite 108 

   Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

SECTION 18.  AMENDMENT TO LEASE.  This Lease may be modified, amended or 

surrendered only by written instrument duly executed by the Lessor and 

Lessee. 

 

SECTION 19.  ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE. 

 

161



 7 

   (a) By Lessor:  The Lessor reserves the right to sell, mortgage, assign or 

otherwise transfer all or any part of its interest in the Premises and to 

assign all of its rights and obligations under this Lease, upon ninety 

(90) days’ notice.  Lessee may, at its option, terminate this lease of 

the date of such action by giving thirty (30) days’ notice, and the 

Total Fixed Rent shall abate for the unexpired portion of the term of 

this lease. 

 

   (b) By Lessee:  Lessee shall not assign this Lease or any of its rights or 

obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the Lessor, 

which consent shall not be arbitrarily withheld.  Lessee shall not 

sublease all or portions of the Premises without the prior written 

consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be arbitrarily withheld.   

 

SECTION 20.  HEADINGS.  The headings used for the various sections herein contained 

are for convenient reference only, and are not intended to define, construe or 

in any manner limit the contents of such sections. 

 

SECTION 21.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  This Lease shall be binding upon, and 

shall inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto, their respective successors 

and permitted assigns. 

 

SECTION 22.  TIME OF THE ESSENCE.  Time shall be of the essence with respect to 

each provision of this Lease which requires payment by either party upon a 

specified date or within a specified time period. 

 

SECTION 23.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Lease constitutes the entire agreement 

between Lessor and Lessee, and there are no other covenants, agreements, 

promises, terms, provisions, conditions, undertakings, or understandings, 

either oral or written, between them concerning the Premises other than 

those set forth herein. 

 

SECTION 24.  PARTIAL INVALIDITY.  If any provision of this Lease, or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent be invalid or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the application of such 

affected provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is 

held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each 

provision of this Lease shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest 

extent permitted by law.  It is further the intention of Lessor and Lessee that 

if any provisions of this Lease is capable of two constructions, one of which 

would render the provision void and the other of which would render the 

provision valid, then the provision shall have the meaning which renders it 

valid. 

 

SECTION 25.  COUNTERPARTS.  This Lease may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which will for all purposes be deemed to be an 

original, and all of which are identical. 

162



 8 

 

SECTION 26.  SECURITY DEPOSIT.  This Section intentionally left blank. 

 

SECTION 27.  BUILDING HOURS.  This Section intentionally left blank. 

 

SECTION 28.  RADON GAS.  As required by law, Lessor hereby makes the following 

disclosure: 

 

   RADON IS A NATURALLY OCCURRING RADIOACTIVE GAS THAT, 

WHEN IT HAS ACCUMULATED IN A BUILDING IN SUFFICIENT 

QUANTITIES, MAY PRESENT HEALTH RISKS TO PERSONS WHO 

ARE EXPOSED TO IT OVER TIME.  LEVELS OF RADON THAT 

EXCEED FEDERAL AND STATE GUIDELINES HAVE BEEN FOUND 

IN BUILDINGS IN FLORIDA.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

REGARDING RADON AND RADON TESTING MAY BE OBTAINED 

FROM YOUR LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT. 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

163



 9 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed the 

day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the  

presence of: 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Print Name: _________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Print Name: _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Print Name: _________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Print Name: _________________________ 

 

 

LESSOR: 

 

ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/ 

SUNBELT, INC., a Florida not-for-profit 

corporation, doing business as 

FLORIDA HOSPITAL 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 

Name: ________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LESSEE: 

 

UCF BUSINESS INCUBATION PROGRAM 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 

Name: ________________________________ 

 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

164



 

 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2018\7-Eleven Rebuild\5 City Council Hearings 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

   Renderings 
   

SUBJECT:    7-ELEVEN REBUILD – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN\SITE 

PLAN 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 7-ELEVEN 

REBUILD\SITE PLAN 
  
SUMMARY:     

OWNER/APPLICANT: 7-Eleven Inc. c/o Craig Cornelison, P.E. 

ENGINEER:   Cornelison Engineering & Design, Inc., c/o Craig Cornelison, P.E. 

LOCATION: 2229 East Semoran Boulevard 

PARCEL ID #s:  12-21-28-6896-00-710 

FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

ZONING: C-2 (General Commercial) District 

EXISTING USE: Automobile Service Station and Convenience Store 

PROPOSED USE: Automobile Service Station and Convenience Store 

TRACT SIZE:   1.279 +/- acres 

BUILDING SIZE: 4,799 square feet total (carwash bldg – 864 sq.ft.; Oil Lube Bldg – 1,363; 
Existing Convenience Store – 1,292 sq.ft.; Addition to Convenience Store – 
1,280 sq. ft.) 

FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.086 (0.25 Maximum) 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

165



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
7-ELEVEN REBUILD – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 (Retail Commercial) Wekiwa Riverwalk Multi-Tenant Center 

East Right-of-Way 

(ROW) 

ROW Wekiwa Springs Road 

South  ROW ROW SR 436/Semoran Boulevard 

West (City) Commercial C-2 (General 

Commercial) 

Retail Sales 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  This is a request to approve the 7-Eleven Rebuild – Final Development Plan/Site 

Plan that includes an additional square footage of 1,280 to the existing 1,292 sq.ft. convenience store.  The 

car wash area will remain the same with the existing area of 864 square feet.  This project has been 

determined as a redevelopment plan based on Section 6.07(A) Hardship Waiver of the Land Development 

Code (LDC) as it meets the following criteria: 

1. Existing structure ten years of age or greater. 

2. The proposed improvements enhance the economic value of the property. 

3. The proposed improvements enhance the esthetics of the project site. 

4. The developer/owner demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Development Review Committee 

(DRC) the proposed improvements would not adversely impact any surrounding properties. 

5. Proposed improvements are less than 50 percent of the value of the property improvements.  

PARKING:  A total of 33 parking spaces will be provided as required by Code, one of which is reserved 

as a handicap accessible parking spaces. 

ACCESS/TRANSPORTATION:  This project has a driveway located at S.R. 436/Semoran Boulevard. 

and at Wekiwa Springs Road.  Each driveway is a right-in, right-out turning movement only. 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed building is 22 feet, below the maximum 

allowable height of 35 feet.  As a part of the rebuild, applicant has proposed amendments to the façade of 

the build and Staff has found the proposed building façade elevations to be in accordance with the City’s 

Development Design Guidelines. 

STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, on the 
northwestern portion of the site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements based on this project. 

BUFFER/SCREENING/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the development plan approval, existing 

landscaping that are decayed will be removed and replaced.  Landscaping will meet the current Code to the 

greatest extent possible.  As this is a redevelopment plan, the required 10-foot wide landscaped buffer 

adjacent to a right-of-way has been has been reduced to the existing width of 5-feet adjacent to Wekiwa 

Springs Road Springs Road and Semoran Boulevard.  Oak trees on the western perimeter are to be preserved 
166



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
7-ELEVEN REBUILD – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

and red maple trees are added to the north boundary abutting Wekiwa Riverwalk Shopping Plaza.  Wax 

myrtles and crape myrtles are placed along the corner perimeter adjacent to Wekiwa Springs Road and 

Semoran Boulevard. 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 23, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

November 7, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 7-Eleven Rebuild Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 23, 2018, found the 7-Eleven Rebuild Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and unanimously 

recommended approval of Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

City Council:  Approve the 7-Eleven Rebuild Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff 

report. 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

167



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
7-ELEVEN REBUILD – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

 

Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant: 7-Eleven Inc. c/o Craig Cornelison, P.E. 

Engineer:  Cornelison Engineering & Design, Inc., c/o Craig Cornelison, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. #s:    12-21-28-6896-00-710 
Location:   2229 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  1.279 acres +/- 

 

  VICINITY MAP 

 

  
 

Subject Property 

168



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
7-ELEVEN REBUILD – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

    
 

Subject Property 

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



 

 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2018\Apopka Business Complex Addition\5 City Council Hearings 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

   Renderings 

   Parking Study 
   

SUBJECT:    APOPKA BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION – FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN/SITE PLAN 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR APOPKA 

BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION 
  
SUMMARY:     

OWNER/APPLICANT: Little Brownie Properties, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. c/o Stephen Allen, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1350 Sheeler Avenue 

 
PARCEL ID #:   15-21-28-3960-00-010 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Industrial 
 
PROPOSED USE: Light Industrial; Flex Space - Product Storage with Private Offices 
 
TRACT SIZE:   21.15 +/- acres; Area of construction/development:  1.79 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 30,050 square feet 
   
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.36 (0.60 Maximum) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

187



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
APOPKA BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial and 

Institutional  

RR (Railroad), PO/I 

(Professional Office/Institutional 

Use), A-1(ZIP), I-1 (Restricted 

Industrial) and C-3 (Wholesale 

Commercial) 

Church, Vehicle Repair, 

Warehousing, and Light Industrial 

South (County) County Low 

Medium Density 

Residential 

County R-1 (County Residential 

Urban District) 

Jeffcoat Heights Residential 

Subdivision 

East (City) Commercial ROW (Right-of-Way) and CN 

(Commercial Neighborhood) 
Vacant 

West (City and 

County) 

City Industrial and 

County Medium 

Density 

Residential 

City I-1 and County R-1 Vacant and Single Family 

Residence 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  This is a request to approve the Apopka Business Complex – Final Development 

Plan that comprises of development approximately 1.8 acres of area on the southern portion of a tract of 

over 21 acres of existing light industrial uses.  The proposed building is 30,050 square in size dedicated to 

light industrial flexible use space that includes product storage with private offices.  The proposed building 

replaces two smaller existing buildings onsite to be demolished. 

PARKING: The City’s Land Development Code addressing parking requirements is broad with regard to 

industrial land uses. In the case of this project, the closest category, Industrial, would require 75 total 

parking spaces. The applicant believes the LDC over generates the number of parking spaces required for 

the activities that will occupy the new buildings and would like the number of parking spaces reduced to 

42. To substantiate this, an Alternative Parking Analysis was submitted to support a reduction in the 

required number of parking spaces for this project from approximately .25 parking spaces/1,000 square feet 

GFA (calculated using the requirements in the City’s Land Development Code) to .14 parking spaces/1,000 

square feet GFA. The analysis used a methodology and data from the Institute of Transportation Engineers 

Parking Generation Manual, 4th Edition as allowed by the City’s Land Development Code. Based on this 

analysis, 39 parking spaces (.13 parking spaces/1,000 square feet GFA) would sufficiently serve this 

development. Staff finds the analysis supports the reduction of parking spaces from 75 to 42. 

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site will remain via Sheeler Road. Modifications to the access connection are not 

required or proposed. 

 

TRANSPORTATION:  The new development is estimated to generate 209 Daily trips and 29 PM Peak 

Hour trips. After subtracting the estimated trip generation for the 2 buildings being demolished, the net new 

trip generation estimate is 178 Daily trips and 24 PM Peak hour trips. 

 

Because this project generates less than 400 Daily trips, a Traffic Impact Analysis was not required. Staff 

reviewed the existing traffic volumes on Sheeler Road in the vicinity and verified sufficient capacity is 

available to accommodate this slight increase in Daily and PM Peak Hour traffic. 

188



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
APOPKA BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

   
STORMWATER:   Per the City Engineer, no impervious surface is increasing or added, therefore, no 
stormwater system is required. 
 

LANDSCAPING/BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  As part of the development plan approval, understory 

trees and a hedge are lined along the southern boundary.  Sabal Palms, Ligustrum Trees and Holly Trees 

will be used due to the restrictions created by the 15-foot wide power easement adjacent to the existing 

access easement being utilized by homeowners adjacent to the southern boundary of the project site.  In 

addition to the landscaping, the site plan shows a wall buffer adjacent to the existing residential subdivision 

on the south at the length of the area of development.   

 

Based on the following arbor assessment, the applicant will be providing 94.5 tree inches onsite and 13 

inches of non-specimen inches will be removed: 

 

 Arbor Assessment 

Total inches on area of development (before removal): 127 

Total specimen inches removed 0 

Total non-specimen inches removed 13 

Total inches retained: 114 

Total inches added: 94.5 

Total inches post development:                       208.5 

 

VARIANCE(S):  At the Planning Commission meeting on April 10, 2018, a variance, VAR18-02 Little 

Brownie Properties, was approved for the subject property allowing a 20 foot reduction from the required 

50-foot wide landscape buffer approximately 764 linear feet along the southern property line, measured 

westward from the Sheeler Avenue right-of-way.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 23, 2018 – Planning Commission, 5:30 pm 

November 7, 2018 – City Council, 1:30 pm 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Apopka Business Complex Addition 

Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report and the public hearing findings for 

VAR18-02 Little Brownie Property. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 23, 2018, found the Apopka Business Complex 

Addition Final Development Plan consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; 

and unanimously recommended approval of Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff 

report and the public hearing findings for VAR18-02 Little Brownie Property. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Apopka Business Complex Addition Final Development Plan. 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

189



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
APOPKA BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

 

Application:  Apopka Business Complex Addition - Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:  Little Brownie Properties, Inc. c/o David Boers 

Engineer:  CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. c/o Stephen Allen, P.E. 

Location:   1350 SheelerAvenue 
Parcel I.D. #:    15-21-28-3960-00-010 
Tract Size:    21.15 +/- acres; Area of construction/development:  1.79 +/- acres 
   

  VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

190



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
APOPKA BUSINESS COMPLEX ADDITION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 

 
 

Subject Property 

191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



 

CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. 
630 N. Wymore Rd. Suite 310 
Maitland, FL  32751 
Certificate of Authorization No. 29390 
407-755-1700 

 
 
September 20, 2018 
 
Jean Sanchez 
City of Apopka 
120 East Main St 
Apopka, FL 32703 
 
Re: SPR18-02R 
      1350 Sheeler Ave. 
 
Ms. Sanchez: 
 
Apopka Business Complex is a proposed development in Apopka, Florida. The site is located 1350 
Sheeler Ave. Apopka, FL. The development would consist of 30,050 square foot Flex Space/Industrial 
Park building. 

 
The City of Apopka LDC Section 6.03.02 A and 6.03.03 B (5) requires two parking space per 1,000 square 
feet of GFA plus 1 parking space per 2 employees plus 1 unloading space per 10,000 sf for “Wholesale, 
industrial, manufacture, processing or assembly”, which is the best fit of our use although not completely 
accurate. Based on this code, the site totals 72 parking space and 3 unloading space (table A). The City has 
allowed a parking study to determine the parking demand generated by a more accurate 
categorization of the actual use. 
 
The parking generation rates used to estimate the parking demand are based on the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Parking Generation Manual, 4th Edition. The ITE Parking Generation 
Manual is the industry standard for estimating parking demand for new development. The relevant 
sheets from the Manual are attached. 

For Industrial Park (land use 130, pg. 34), the Average Peak Period Parking is 1.27 vehicles per 1,000 sq. 
ft. GFA. Therefore, an Industrial building that is 30,050 sf would require 39 parking spaces (Table A).  
Industrial Park use is defined by ITE as follow: 
 
“Industrial parks contain a number of industrial or related facilities.  They are characterized by a 
mix of manufacturing, service and warehouse facilities with a wide variation in the proportion of 
each type of use from one location to another.  Many industrial parks contain highly diversified 
facilities-some with a large number of small businesses and others with one or two dominant 
industries.  General light industrial (land Use 110) and manufacturing (Land Use 140).” 
 
The attached plan shows 41 parking spaces, the total potential employees for the building is 24 
employees. The proposed 41 parking spaces and 2 loading areas would be enough for all the employees 
plus some. The manual does not mention loading or unloading spaces, but the requirement is 
recognized and met to an appropriate standard. The proposed amount of spaces is greater than the 
value in the parking study. 

210



September 20, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
In conclusion 75 spaces would be an over design for the proposed usage.  
 
Sincerely, 
CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
Stephen Allen, PE #59994 
President. 
 
 
  

211



September 20, 2018 
Page 3 
 

Table A: Parking Required and Proposed 
 

Required Land Use Amount Parking Spaces 
2 per 1,000SF GFA Industrial 30.5 (1,000 SF) 64 
1 per 2 employees  24 employees 12 
1 per 10,000 SF Loading Area 3 (10,000 SF) 3 
  Total Required 75 Spaces 
    
Parking Study    
1.27 per 1,000SF GFA Industrial Park 30.5 (1,000SF) 39  
  Total Proposed 39 Parking Spaces 
    
Proposed   41 Parking Spaces 
   2 Loading Spaces 
   43 Spaces 

 

212



213



214



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Zoning Map 

   Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

   Architectural Renderings 

   Traffic Impact Analysis 
   

SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SITE PLAN – MEADOW VIEW 

APARTMENTS 
    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR MEADOW 

VIEW APARTMENTS  
SUMMARY:     

OWNER/APPLICANT: Allonde Development, LLC. 

ENGINEER:   CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. c/o Stephen Allen, P.E. 

LOCATION: 1611 Vick Road 

PARCEL ID #s:  32-20-28-0000-00-042 

FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Medium 

ZONING: R-3 

EXISTING USE: Vacant 

PROPOSED USE: Luxury Apartments 

TRACT SIZE:   4.314 +/- acres  

 

 

 

 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

215



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) R-L R-3 Residential - Errol Golfside Village 

East (City) R-L, R-M R-3 Residential - Wekiva Crest (Pond), Sanctuary Golf Estates 

South (City) R-M R-3 Residential - Muirfield Estate at Errol Phase 2 

West (City) RML PUD Errol Estates Golf Course 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  This is a request to approve Meadow View Apartments Final Development 

Plan, a 43 unit luxury multi-family apartment complex. The complex will be comprised of five, two-story 

buildings. There are building types: 

 

 Building Type “A”  2 Buildings 18,953 square feet total area each  9 units per building  

 Building Type “B”  3 Buildings   8,088 square feet total area each   8 units per building 

 

This multifamily complex will have a combination of one, two and three bedroom units: 

  

 One-bedroom     4 units    771 square feet each unit 

 Two-bedroom   30 units    977 square feet each unit 

 Three-bedroom   9 units  1,133 square feet each unit 

 

Meadow View Apartments will have additional amenities that distinguish it as a luxury apartment complex. 

These amenities, which are a condition of development approval, include wireless internet access, 

balconies/porches, a fitness center, a resort style swimming pool and clubhouse, walk-in showers, walk-in 

closets, full size washer and dryer in each unit, granite counter tops and 9 foot ceilings.  

 

The site is significantly sloped from south to northwest, falling approximately 16 feet. Retaining walls have 

been designed and will be installed to support the buildings that will be located on the west side of the 

property. 

 

PARKING:  The Land Development Code requires 2 parking spaces per apartment unit plus 1 parking 

space per 4 apartment units for overflow parking, making the total number of required parking spaces 97. 

This total includes 5 accessible parking spaces as required by Florida Building Code – Accessibility; 

however, the site plan is designed with 103 parking spaces, including 7 accessible parking spaces, to ensure 

overflow parking is available when needed. The increase of accessible parking spaces from 5 to 7 ensures 

at least one accessible parking space adjacent to the primary entrance of each of the five residential buildings 

and clubhouse building.    

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided through a single entrance on Vick Road, north of Welch Road. A 

site distance issue exists due to the curve and elevation of Vick Road north of the entrance. To ensure the 

safety of residents entering and exiting the site as well as northbound and southbound traffic traveling on 

Vick Road, a condition of approval has been placed on the project, requiring the developer and future 

property owner to trim back the trees and shrubs located in the City’s right-of-way on the east side of Vick 

Road, approximately 280 feet north of the site entrance, and to keep the line of sight clear in the future. 

 

TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was submitted for this project that assessed the 

impacts on the transportation facilities within one mile of the site. The project is anticipated to generate 384 

Daily trips and 26 PM Peak Hour net new trips. The following roadway segments were analyzed for capacity 

in the study: Welch Road from Vick Road to Rock Springs Road; Lester Road from Vick Road to Rock 
216



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

Springs Road and Vick Road to Schopke Lester Road; and Vick Road from Old Dixie Highway to Martin 

Street, Martin Street to Welch Road, Welch Road to Lake Francis Drive, Lake Francis Drive to Lester Road, 

and Lester Road to Ponkan Road.  The roadway segment analysis demonstrates sufficient capacity exists 

on all study roadway segments to accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project.  

 

 The intersection of Vick Road and Welch Road was analyzed for existing and future conditions for the PM 

Peak Hour. The analysis shows that the intersection is currently operating satisfactorily and will continue 

to operate at a satisfactory LOS in the projected conditions.  

 

Warrants for left and right turn lanes on Vick Road at the project entrance were conducted to determine if 

turn lanes are necessary to maintain the integrity of traffic flow and safety on the road. Neither turn lanes 

were warranted, however, for safety purposes the applicant has agreed to install a left turn lane at the site 

entrance. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed two-story buildings is 31 feet, falling below the 

maximum allowable height of 35'.  Staff finds that the proposed building elevations meet the intent of the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   
STORMWATER:   Stormwater will be captured and attenuated through an underground exfiltration 
system. 
 

BUFFER/SCREENING/LANDSCAPING/TREE PROGRAM:   The landscape buffers and site 

landscaping will be artfully arranged with Sabal Palms, Podocarpus Shrubs, Walter’s Viburnum, Drift Rose, 

Gold Mound Duranta, Dwarf Yaupon Holly, and Dwarf Asiatic Jasmine. All plant materials will be “Florida 

Friendly”.   

 

As part of the development plan approval, 22 Live Oaks, 24 Magnolias, 19 Red Cedars, 25 Crepe Myrtles, 

and 19 Eagleston Holly trees will be planted on the site. Tree mitigation is required for 469 inches dbh. The 

proposed Tree Bank payment is $4,960.00 (496 inches X $10.00/inch). 

 

 Arbor Assessment 

Total inches on-site: 1,922 

Total inches removed 1,384 

Total inches retained: 494 

Total inches added:       372 

Total inches post development:                       866 

 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL:  The applicant is required to trim back the trees and shrubs located in the 

City’s right-of-way on the east side of Vick Road and ensure the future property owner maintains a clear 

line of site from the project entrance. Also, the applicant is required to install a left turn lane on Vick Road 

at the site entrance and provide 7 accessible parking spaces. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 23, 2018 – Planning Commission, 5:30 pm 

November 7, 2018 – City Council, 1:30 pm 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 
217



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of Meadow View Apartments Final 

Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 23, 2018, found the Meadow View Apartments Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, compatible with 

the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously recommended approval of Meadow View 

Apartments Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report and the following condition: 

 

1. The developer is required to increase the number of accessible parking spaces from five, which is 

the minimum required by Florida Building Code – Accessibility, to seven to ensure at least one 

accessible parking space is adjacent to the primary entrance of each of the six buildings on the site.   

 

City Council:  Approve Meadow View Apartments Final Development Plan with the conditions approved 

by the Planning Commission. 

 

 

218



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Meadow View Apartments Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:  Allonde Development, LLC. 

Engineer:  CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. c/o Stephen Allen, P.E. 

Location:   1611 Vick Road 
Parcel I.D. #s:    32-20-28-0000-00-042 
Total Site Area:  4.314 +/- acres 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  

   
   

 

Subject Property 

219



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 

ZONING MAP 

 

       

LEGEND 

Subject Property 

220



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 7 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject Property 

221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



MEADOW VIEW APARTMENTS 
Project № 17032 v2.0 

November 2017 
 
 
 

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
CITY OF APOPKA 

FLORIDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3101 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 265 
Orlando, Florida 32803 
www.trafficmobility.com 

(407) 531-5332 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

Allonde Development LLC 
160 N Spring Lake Drive 

Altamonte Springs, Florida 32714 
 
 

265



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Executive Summary 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This traffic analysis was performed to assess the impact of the proposed Meadow View 
Apartments. The site is located on the intersection of Vick Road and Welch Road in the City of 
Apopka. The property will include a total of 43 apartment units. 
 
The analysis evaluated project impacts to roadway segments and intersections within the primary 
site’s influence area and a preliminary access review.  The results of the analysis as documented 
herein are summarized below: 
 

 The proposed development will generate a new daily traffic volume of 384 vehicle trips, of 
which 26 will occur in the PM peak hour. 

 
 Analysis of roadway segment capacity reveals that all study segments currently operate 

within their adopted capacity and are projected to continue to do so at project buildout. 
 

 Analysis of the study intersections indicates that they currently operate at adequate LOS 
and are projected to continue to do so at project buildout. 
 

 A review of the project driveway at Vick Road and the required turn lane treatments reveals 
that turn deceleration lanes on Vick Road are not warranted or necessary to serve the 
projected traffic. 
 

 Queuing is not anticipated at the access driveway on Vick Road.  The proposed left turn 
lane is approximately 170 feet long and is adequate to serve the projected left turns. 

 
 The proposed development does not adversely impact traffic operations in the 

vicinity of the site.  
  

266



 

 

 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CERTIFICATION 

 
 
 
I hereby certify that I am a Professional Engineer properly registered in the State of Florida 

practicing with Traffic & Mobility Consultants LLC, a corporation authorized to operate as an 

engineering business, EB-30024, by the State of Florida Department of Professional Regulation, 

Board of Professional Engineers, and that I have prepared or approved the evaluations, findings, 

opinions, conclusions, or technical advice attached hereto for: 

 

 

PROJECT: Meadow View Apartments 

LOCATION:  City of Apopka, Florida  

CLIENT: Allonde Development LLC 

 

 

 

I hereby acknowledge that the procedures and references used to develop the results contained 

in these computations are standard to the professional practice of Transportation Engineering as 

applied through professional judgment and experience. 

 

 

 

 

NAME:  Mohammed Abdallah 

P.E. No.:  Florida P.E. No. 56169 

DATE:  November 13, 2017 
 
 
SIGNATURE:      
 

267



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 
Project № 117032 v2.0 

Table of Contents i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 Page  

1.0  INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................ 1 

2.0  EXISTING CONDITIONS ANALYSIS ................................................................................ 3 

2.1  Roadway Segment Capacity .......................................................................................... 3 
2.2  Intersection Capacity ...................................................................................................... 4 

3.0  PROJECT TRAFFIC .......................................................................................................... 6 

3.1  Trip Generation ............................................................................................................... 6 
3.2  Trip Distribution/Assignment ........................................................................................... 6 

4.0  PROJECTED CONDITIONS ANALYSIS .......................................................................... 8 

4.1  Roadway Segment Capacity .......................................................................................... 8 
4.2  Intersection Capacity .................................................................................................... 10 

5.0  SITE ACCESS REVIEW .................................................................................................. 12 

6.0  STUDY CONCLUSIONS ................................................................................................. 14 

APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................. 15 

Appendix A Preliminary Site Plan 
Appendix B Meadow View Apartments Study Methodology 
Appendix C City of Apopka CMS Data 
Appendix D Traffic Counts & FDOT Seasonal Factors 
Appendix E Existing Conditions Analysis Worksheets 
Appendix F Trip Generation Sheets 
Appendix G OUATS Model 
Appendix H Projected Conditions Analysis Worksheets 
Appendix I Turn Warrants 
Appendix J FDOT Index 301 

 
 
  

268



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 
Project № 117032 v2.0 

Table of Contents ii 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1   Existing Roadway Capacity Analysis ............................................................................. 3 

Table 2   Existing Intersection Capacity Analysis ......................................................................... 4 

Table 3  Trip Generation Analysis ................................................................................................. 6 

Table 4  Projected Roadway Capacity Analysis ........................................................................... 9 

Table 5  Projected Intersection Capacity Analysis ...................................................................... 10 

 

 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1  Site Location Map .......................................................................................................... 2 

Figure 2  Existing Intersection Volumes ........................................................................................ 5 

Figure 3  Project Distribution ......................................................................................................... 7 

Figure 4  Projected Intersection Volumes ................................................................................... 11 

269



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

This revised traffic analysis was performed to assess the impact of the proposed Meadow View 

Apartments located on the intersection of Vick Road and Welch Road in the City of Apopka. The 

property will include a total of 43 apartment units.  Figure 1 depicts the location of the project site 

and the surrounding roadway network.  A preliminary site plan is provided in Appendix A. 

 

The following analysis was conducted in accordance with the methodology submitted to the city, 

and which is included in Appendix B. The analysis considers the project’s impacts on the 

following roadways and intersections, within the project’s influence area: 

 
Roadway Segments 
 

 Welch Road 
o Vick Road to Rock Spring Road 

 
 Lester Road 
o Rock Spring Road to Vick Road 
o Vick Road to Schopke Lester Road 

 
 Vick Road 
o Old Dixie Highway to Martin Street 
o Martin Street to Welch Road 
o Welch Road to Lake Francis Drive 
o Lake Francis Drive to Lester Road  
o Lester Road to Ponkan Road 

 
Intersections 
 

 Vick Road & Welch Road 
 Vick Road & Access 

 
Data used in the analysis consisted of site plan/development information provided by the Project 

Engineers, PM peak hour traffic counts obtained by Traffic & Mobility Consultants LLC (TMC), 

road segment data obtained from the City of Apopka, seasonal data obtained from Florida 

Department of Transportations (FDOT). 

270



SITE

Site Location Map
1

N
Not to Scale

Figure

Meadow View Apartments
17032 v2.0

271



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 3 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS ANALYSIS 

2.1 Roadway Segment Capacity 

Table 1 presents a summary of the existing conditions for the roadway segments examined in 

this study. Roadway segments were analyzed by comparing the existing Level of Service (LOS) 

for each roadway segment with the adopted LOS standard.  Existing Daily, PM peak hour 

directional traffic volumes, capacities, and committed trips were obtained from the City of 

Apopka’s Encumbered Traffic Allocation Worksheets, which are included in Appendix C.  

 

Table 1   
Existing Roadway Capacity Analysis 

 
 

The existing conditions analysis reveals that the study roadway segments currently operate at 

satisfactory LOS. 

 

Daily PM Peak Hour 

Roadway Segment
No 
Lns

LOS 
Std

Capacity Volume
Comm 
Trips

Total LOS Capacity Volume
Peak 

Dir
Comm 
Trips

Total LOS

Welch Rd

Vick Rd to Rock Spring Rd 2 E 16,400 10,312 227 10,539 A 840 518 NB/EB 24 542 A

Lester Rd

Rock Spring Rd to Vick Rd 2 E 14,000 3,910 115 4,025 C 720 227 SB/WB 12 239 C

Vick Rd to Schopke Lester Rd 2 E 14,000 3,910 439 4,349 C 720 227 SB/WB 42 269 C

Vick Rd 

Old Dixie Hwy to Martin St 2 E 16,400 12,674 40 12,714 D 840 758 NB/EB 2 760 D

Martin St to Welch Rd 2 E 16,400 11,510 208 11,718 D 840 684 NB/EB 21 705 D

Welch Rd to Lake Francis Dr 2 E 14,000 10,107 34 10,141 D 720 520 NB/EB 1 521 D

Lake Francis Dr to Lester Rd 2 E 14,000 7,264 346 7,610 C 720 362 NB/EB 34 396 C

Lester Rd to Ponkan Rd 2 E 14,000 11,980 191 12,171 D 720 277 NB/EB 18 295 C

272



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 4 

2.2 Intersection Capacity 

An intersection analysis was conducted using the Synchro Software and the methods of the 2010 

Highway Capacity Manual (HCM).  The capacity analysis was performed using the existing 

intersection geometries and traffic volumes during the PM peak hour.  Existing turning movement 

counts were obtained at the study intersections.  The raw turning movement counts were 

conducted within the peak season.  Therefore, a Seasonal Adjustment Factor was not applied to 

the counts based on the data obtained from the FDOT Traffic Online website. The raw intersection 

volume counts and seasonal factors are included in Appendix D.  

 

The intersection volumes are displayed in Figure 2. A summary of the intersection capacity 

analysis is shown in Table 2. This analysis indicates that the study intersections currently operate 

at satisfactory LOS. Detailed analysis worksheets are included in Appendix E. 

 

Table 2   
Existing Intersection Capacity Analysis 

 
  

 

Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS

Vick Rd & Welch Rd Signal -- -- 36.4 D 20.5 C 9.4 A 22.7 C

NB
Intersection Control

SB OverallEB WB

273



2
7
4

2
3
9

V
ic

k
 R

d

V
ic

k
 R

d

Welch Rd

N
Not to Scale

1
5
4

1
5
0

193
201

2
Existing PM Intersection Volumes Figure

Meadow View Apartments
17032 v2.0

274



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 6 

3.0 PROJECT TRAFFIC 

3.1 Trip Generation 

Information published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) in the Trip Generation 

Manual, 9th Edition was used to determine the trip generation of the proposed development as 

summarized in Table 3.  Detailed trip generation sheets are included in Appendix F. 

 

Table 3  
Trip Generation Analysis 

 
 

The proposed development will generate 384 trips per day, of which 26 trips will occur during the 

PM peak hour.   

 

3.2 Trip Distribution/Assignment 

To assign the PM peak hour trips generated by the proposed development to the study roadways, 

a distribution pattern in the general vicinity of the project site was determined based on the 

OUATS model output included in Appendix G and modified to reflect the local network and 

prevailing traffic patterns. The proposed trip distribution pattern is provided in Figure 3. 

 

ITE Daily PM Peak Hour
Code Rate Trips Rate Total Enter Exit

220 Apartments 43 DU 8.93 384 0.60 26 17 9

Trip generation analysis based on ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition

Eqaution has been used to calculate the rate

Land Use Size

275



50%

75%

15%

25%

25%

5%

5%

Project Trip Distribution
3

SITE

N
Not to Scale

Figure

Meadow View Apartments
17032 v2.0

276



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 8 

4.0 PROJECTED CONDITIONS ANALYSIS 

Projected traffic conditions at project buildout were analyzed for Daily and PM peak hour traffic.  

Buildout year for the project is 2018. The analyses were conducted for the projected background 

traffic volumes and project trips.  Background traffic consists of existing traffic and committed trips 

from approved developments in the area, which were obtained from the City’s Encumbered Traffic 

Allocation Worksheets.   

 

4.1 Roadway Segment Capacity 

The roadway segment analysis was performed by comparing the projected LOS of the roadway 

with the adopted LOS standard.  This analysis is summarized in Table 4, which reveals that the 

segments will continue to operate at satisfactory LOS in the projected condition. The project’s 

impact on the backlogged roadway segment is less than 2% of the roadway’s current capacity.  

 

277



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 9 

Table 4  
Projected Roadway Capacity Analysis 

 

 

Daily PM Peak Hour 

Roadway Segment
No 
Lns

LOS 
Std

Capacity Volume
Comm 
Trips

Trip 
Distr

Project 
Trips

Total LOS Capacity Volume
Peak 

Dir
Comm 
Trips

Project 
Trips

Total LOS

Welch Rd

Vick Rd to Rock Spring Rd 2 E 16,400 10,312 227 25% 96 10,635 A 840 518 NB/EB 24 2 544 A

Lester Rd

Rock Spring Rd to Vick Rd 2 E 14,000 3,910 115 5% 19 4,044 C 720 227 SB/WB 12 0 239 C

Vick Rd to Schopke Lester Rd 2 E 14,000 3,910 439 15% 58 4,407 C 720 227 SB/WB 42 1 270 C

Vick Rd 

Old Dixie Hwy to Martin St 2 E 16,400 12,674 40 50% 192 12,906 D 840 758 NB/EB 2 9 769 D

Martin St to Welch Rd 2 E 16,400 11,510 208 50% 192 11,910 D 840 684 NB/EB 21 9 714 D

Welch Rd to Lake Francis Dr 2 E 14,000 10,107 34 75% 288 10,429 D 720 520 NB/EB 1 7 528 D

Lake Francis Dr to Lester Rd 2 E 14,000 7,264 346 25% 96 7,706 C 720 362 NB/EB 34 2 398 C

Lester Rd to Ponkan Rd 2 E 14,000 11,980 191 5% 19 12,190 D 720 277 NB/EB 18 0 295 C

278



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 10 

4.2 Intersection Capacity 

To assess the projected operating conditions at the study intersections, an intersection capacity 

analysis was conducted using projected traffic volumes and projected intersection configurations.  

The intersections were analyzed using the Synchro Software.  Projected peak hour volumes were 

calculated by adding background traffic and project trips at the intersections.  Background traffic 

is comprised of existing and committed traffic at the intersections.  Committed trips were estimated 

by assigning the segment committed trips to the intersection turning movements.  The projected 

PM peak intersection volumes are shown in Figure 4, and the intersection analysis is summarized 

in Table 5. 

 

Table 5  
Projected Intersection Capacity Analysis 

 
 

The analysis shows that the intersections will continue to operate at satisfactory LOS in the 

projected conditions. Detailed printouts of the analysis are included in Appendix H.  

  

Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS

Vick Rd & Welch Rd Signal -- -- 36.6 D 21.8 C 9.7 A 23.1 C

Vick Rd & Access TWSC 11.9 B -- -- 8.0 A -- -- -- --

SB OverallWB NB
Intersection Control

EB

279



S
it
e

4
Projected PM Intersection Volumes

Legend
Background+[Committed]+(Project)=Total

Figure

N
Not to Scale

(2)
(7)

(4
)

3
0
4
+

[2
1
]=

3
2
5

(1
3
)

4
6
7
+

[3
4
]=

5
0
1

V
ic

k
 R

d
V

ic
k
 R

d

Meadow View Apartments
17032 v2.0

2
7
4
+

[3
4
]+

(9
)=

3
1
7

2
3
9

Welch Rd

AccessAccess

1
5
4
+

[2
1
]+

(5
)=

1
8
0

1
5
0
+

(2
)=

1
5
2

193+(4)=197
201

280



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 12 

5.0 SITE ACCESS REVIEW 

The site is proposed to be served by a full access driveway, located approximately 650 feet north 

east of the intersection of Vick Road and Welch Road.  The following review evaluates the 

proposed access configuration and the warrants for deceleration lanes at the driveways. 

 

Turn Lane Warrants 

A review of warrants for left and right turn deceleration lanes on Vick Road at the Meadow View 

driveway was conducted to determine if auxiliary turn lanes are necessary to maintain the integrity 

of traffic flow and capacity of the road during the peak hours. The review was conducted based 

on the methodology of the National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 

457. The results of the warrants are summarized in the charts below and the full output forms are 

included in Appendix I.  

 

Based on this review, turn lanes are not required on Vick Road at the intersection of Vick Road 

and project access. 

 

  

Right Turn Lane Warrant Left Turn Lane Warrant 

281



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 13 

Left Turn Lane at Vick Road (NB) 

Although a left turn lane is not warranted by volume, one is proposed to minimize the potential 

friction from the proposed full access driveway on Vick Road.  The proposed left turn deceleration 

lane on Vick Road should be designed in accordance with the requirements of Index 301 of the 

FDOT Design Standards for a speed of 35 mph. A copy of FDOT Index 301 is included in 

Appendix J.  The queue storage area is based on the Preparation Manual (PPM) formula for 

queue length storage. 

 
Queue Storage = 2 x 25 x # of Vehicles / 60 

 
The required turn lane length is as follows: 

Total Length = Deceleration Length + Storage  
Deceleration @ 35 mph = 145 feet (incl. 50-foot taper) 
Queue = 2 x 25 x # of Vehicles / 60  

= 2 x 25 x 13 Vehicles / 60  
= 11 feet (use 25 minimum) 

Total = 145 + 25 = 170 feet (include 50-foot taper) 
 

The proposed left turn lane is approximately 170 feet which is adequate to serve the projected 

left turns into the site.    

 

  

282



 

Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Project № 17032 v2.0 
Page 14 

6.0 STUDY CONCLUSIONS 

This traffic analysis was performed to assess the impact of the proposed Meadow View 

Apartments. The site is located on the intersection of Vick Road and Welch Road in the City of 

Apopka. The property will include a total of 43 apartment units. 

 

The analysis evaluated project impacts to roadway segments and intersections within the primary 

site’s influence area and a preliminary access review.  The results of the analysis as documented 

herein are summarized below: 

 

 The proposed development will generate a new daily traffic volume of 384 vehicle trips, of 

which 26 will occur in the PM peak hour. 

 

 Analysis of roadway segment capacity reveals that all study segments currently operate 

within their adopted capacity and are projected to continue to do so at project buildout. 

 

 Analysis of the study intersections indicates that they currently operate at adequate LOS 

and are projected to continue to do so at project buildout. 

 

 A review of the project driveway at Vick Road and the required turn lane treatments reveals 

that turn deceleration lanes on Vick Road are not warranted or necessary to serve the 

projected traffic. 

 

 Queuing is not anticipated at the access driveway on Vick Road.  The proposed left turn 

lane is approximately 170 feet long and is adequate to serve the projected left turns. 

 

 The proposed development does not adversely impact traffic operations in the 

vicinity of the site.  

  

283



 

 

APPENDICES 

 
  

284



 

 

Appendix A 
Preliminary Site Plan  

  

285



286



 

 

Appendix B 
Meadow View Apartments Study Methodology 

  

287



 

3101 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 265, Orlando, Florida 32803   ■   P: (407) 531-5332   ■   F: (407) 531-5331   ■   www.trafficmobility.com 
 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
April 26, 2017 
 
 
Re: Meadow View Apartments  
 Traffic Impact Analysis Methodology 
 Project № 17032 

 
 
The following is a methodology outline for the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the above 
referenced project.  
 
Project Description   
The proposed project includes a 43 Apartment units.  A copy of the proposed site plan is provided 
in the Attachments. 

 
Project Location 
The site is located on Vick Road, west of the intersection with Welch Road in the City of Apopka 
(see Figure 1). 
 

 
                       Figure 1 – Project Location 

 

288



Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis Methodology 
Project № 17032 
April 26, 2017 
Page 2 of 3 
 

3101 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 265, Orlando, Florida 32803   ■   P: (407) 531-5332   ■   F: (407) 531-5331   ■   www.trafficmobility.com 
 

Project Access 
Primary access to the site will be provided throw a proposed Right-in/Right-out driveway on Vick 
Road as shown in the proposed concept plan in the Attachments. 
 
Trip Generation  
The trip generation analysis was conducted using information published by the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) in the Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition.  Table 1 summarizes 
the resulting trip generation analysis conducted. The ITE Trip Generation sheets are attached. 
 
 

Table 1 
Trip Generation 

 
 

 
Proposed Trip Distribution 
A trip distribution pattern was estimated using the OUATS model and modified to reflect the local 
network and prevailing traffic flow patterns. The OUATS output is included in the Attachments. 
And the general distribution presents as follows: 
 

To/from South on Vick Road   50% 
To/from North on Vick Road   25% 
To/from East on Welch Road   25% 

 
  

ITE Daily PM Peak Hour
Code Rate Trips Rate Total Enter Exit

220 Apartments 43 DU 8.93 384 0.60 26 17 9

Trip generation analysis based on ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition

Land Use Size

289



Meadow View Apartments 
Traffic Impact Analysis Methodology 
Project № 17032 
April 26, 2017 
Page 3 of 3 
 

3101 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 265, Orlando, Florida 32803   ■   P: (407) 531-5332   ■   F: (407) 531-5331   ■   www.trafficmobility.com 
 

Study Area 
The following intersections and roadway segments will be analyzed for the PM peak hour as part 
of this study: 
 
Study Intersections  

- Vick Road & Welch Road 
- Vick Road & Access 

 
Roadway Segments  
 

 Welch Road 
o Vick Road to Rock Spring Road 

 
 Lester Road 
o Rock Spring Road to Vick Road 
o Vick Road to Schopke Lester Road 

 
 Vick Road 
o Old Dixie Highway to Martin Street 
o Martin Street to Welch Road 
o Welch Road to Lake Francis Drive 
o Lake Francis Drive to Lester Road  
o Lester Road to Ponkan Road 

 

290



 

 

 
Appendix C 

City of Apopka CMS Data 

  

291



292



293



294



 

 

Appendix D 
Traffic Counts & FDOT Seasonal Factors 

  

295



TURNING MOVEMENT COUNT ANALYSIS
AUTOS & TRUCKS

Intersection (N/S): Vick Rd
Intersection (E/W): Welsh Rd

Date: 4/27/2017
Vick Rd Vick Rd Welsh Rd Welsh Rd

NB SB EB WB
Start End L T R L T R L T R L T R TOTAL

4:00 PM 4:15 PM 0 47 44 16 18 0 0 0 0 30 0 22 177

4:15 PM 4:30 PM 0 66 40 16 40 0 0 0 0 41 0 36 239

4:30 PM 4:45 PM 0 59 53 31 39 0 0 0 0 52 0 51 285

4:45 PM 5:00 PM 0 64 60 40 44 0 0 0 0 43 0 48 299

5:00 PM 5:15 PM 0 80 60 39 32 0 0 0 0 50 0 40 301

5:15 PM 5:30 PM 0 67 48 41 46 0 0 0 0 48 0 55 305

5:30 PM 5:45 PM 0 63 71 30 32 0 0 0 0 60 0 50 306

5:45 PM 6:00 PM 0 71 56 25 30 0 0 0 0 42 0 51 275

Total for: 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 0 236 197 103 141 0 0 0 0 166 0 157 1000

Total for: 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 0 281 235 135 140 0 0 0 0 200 0 196 1187

Tota Peak Hour: 4:45 PM 5:45 PM 0 274 239 150 154 0 0 0 0 201 0 193 1211

Overall PHF: 0.99

Southbound
     Peak Hour Volumes

0 154 150

Vick Rd

0 193

0 0

0 201

Vick Rd

0 274 239

Northbound

W
el

sh
 R

d W
elsh R

d

E
as

tb
ou

nd

W
es

tb
ou

nd

296



 2016 PEAK SEASON FACTOR CATEGORY REPORT - REPORT TYPE: ALL
CATEGORY: 7500  ORANGE COUNTYWIDE        
                                                MOCF: 0.98
WEEK          DATES               SF            PSCF
================================================================================
  1    01/01/2016 - 01/02/2016    1.01          1.03
  2    01/03/2016 - 01/09/2016    1.03          1.05
  3    01/10/2016 - 01/16/2016    1.06          1.08
  4    01/17/2016 - 01/23/2016    1.04          1.06
  5    01/24/2016 - 01/30/2016    1.03          1.05
  6    01/31/2016 - 02/06/2016    1.02          1.04
  7    02/07/2016 - 02/13/2016    1.01          1.03
  8    02/14/2016 - 02/20/2016    1.00          1.02
  9    02/21/2016 - 02/27/2016    0.99          1.01
*10    02/28/2016 - 03/05/2016    0.99          1.01
*11    03/06/2016 - 03/12/2016    0.98          1.00
*12    03/13/2016 - 03/19/2016    0.98          1.00
*13    03/20/2016 - 03/26/2016    0.98          1.00
*14    03/27/2016 - 04/02/2016    0.98          1.00
*15    04/03/2016 - 04/09/2016    0.98          1.00
*16    04/10/2016 - 04/16/2016    0.98          1.00
*17    04/17/2016 - 04/23/2016    0.98          1.00
*18    04/24/2016 - 04/30/2016    0.98          1.00
*19    05/01/2016 - 05/07/2016    0.98          1.00
*20    05/08/2016 - 05/14/2016    0.98          1.00
*21    05/15/2016 - 05/21/2016    0.99          1.01
*22    05/22/2016 - 05/28/2016    0.99          1.01
 23    05/29/2016 - 06/04/2016    1.00          1.02
 24    06/05/2016 - 06/11/2016    1.00          1.02
 25    06/12/2016 - 06/18/2016    1.01          1.03
 26    06/19/2016 - 06/25/2016    1.01          1.03
 27    06/26/2016 - 07/02/2016    1.01          1.03
 28    07/03/2016 - 07/09/2016    1.01          1.03
 29    07/10/2016 - 07/16/2016    1.02          1.04
 30    07/17/2016 - 07/23/2016    1.01          1.03
 31    07/24/2016 - 07/30/2016    1.01          1.03
 32    07/31/2016 - 08/06/2016    1.00          1.02
 33    08/07/2016 - 08/13/2016    1.00          1.02
 34    08/14/2016 - 08/20/2016    1.00          1.02
 35    08/21/2016 - 08/27/2016    1.00          1.02
 36    08/28/2016 - 09/03/2016    1.01          1.03
 37    09/04/2016 - 09/10/2016    1.01          1.03
 38    09/11/2016 - 09/17/2016    1.02          1.04
 39    09/18/2016 - 09/24/2016    1.01          1.03
 40    09/25/2016 - 10/01/2016    1.01          1.03
 41    10/02/2016 - 10/08/2016    1.01          1.03
 42    10/09/2016 - 10/15/2016    1.00          1.02
 43    10/16/2016 - 10/22/2016    1.00          1.02
 44    10/23/2016 - 10/29/2016    1.00          1.02
 45    10/30/2016 - 11/05/2016    1.00          1.02
 46    11/06/2016 - 11/12/2016    1.00          1.02
 47    11/13/2016 - 11/19/2016    1.00          1.02
 48    11/20/2016 - 11/26/2016    1.00          1.02
 49    11/27/2016 - 12/03/2016    1.00          1.02
 50    12/04/2016 - 12/10/2016    1.01          1.03
 51    12/11/2016 - 12/17/2016    1.01          1.03
 52    12/18/2016 - 12/24/2016    1.03          1.05
 53    12/25/2016 - 12/31/2016    1.06          1.08

* PEAK SEASON

21-FEB-2017 10:54:35                        830UPD             5_7500_PKSEASON.TXT

297



 

 

Appendix E 
Existing Conditions Analysis Worksheets 

  

298



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary
2: Vick Rd & Welch Rd

Existing   Synchro 9 Light Report
17032 Page 1

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (veh/h) 201 193 274 239 150 154
Future Volume (veh/h) 201 193 274 239 150 154
Number 3 18 2 12 1 6
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 1863 1863 1900 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 203 180 277 231 152 156
Adj No. of Lanes 1 1 1 0 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 390 348 455 379 492 1208
Arrive On Green 0.22 0.22 0.48 0.48 0.10 0.65
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1583 940 784 1774 1863
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 203 180 0 508 152 156
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1583 0 1724 1774 1863
Q Serve(g_s), s 9.2 9.1 0.0 19.6 3.4 2.9
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 9.2 9.1 0.0 19.6 3.4 2.9
Prop In Lane 1.00 1.00 0.45 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 390 348 0 834 492 1208
V/C Ratio(X) 0.52 0.52 0.00 0.61 0.31 0.13
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 390 348 0 834 492 1208
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 31.3 31.3 0.0 17.2 10.9 6.1
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 4.9 5.4 0.0 3.3 1.6 0.2
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(50%),veh/ln 5.0 4.5 0.0 10.1 1.8 1.5
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 36.2 36.7 0.0 20.5 12.5 6.4
LnGrp LOS D D C B A
Approach Vol, veh/h 383 508 308
Approach Delay, s/veh 36.4 20.5 9.4
Approach LOS D C A

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 6 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 15.0 50.0 65.0 26.0
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 6.0 6.0 * 6 6.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 9.0 43.0 * 59 20.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 5.4 21.6 4.9 11.2
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.1 4.3 4.9 0.8

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 22.7
HCM 2010 LOS C

Notes

299



 

 

Appendix F 
Trip Generation Sheets 

  

300



301



302



 

 

Appendix G 
OUATS Model 

  

303



 (Licensed to Traffic & Mobility Consultants, LLC)

C:\FSUTMS\D5\OUATS.2040\Base\CF2020\P17032\Output\HRLDXY_C20.NET  (Tue 25 Apr 2017 )

Project Ditribution (TAZ 1091)

Orlando 2040 LRTP Model - OUATS Year 2020 Cost Feasible Model Meadow View Apts (17-032)

Legend:

 1 Lane per direction

 2 Lanes per direction

 3 Lanes per direction

 4 Lanes per direction

 5 Lanes per direction

 6+ Lanes per direction

 Centroid Connector

Not to scale

North

3

2

6

1

1

0

1

6

41

22

30

0

0

5

0

1

2

7

7

6

5

0

5

0

10

17

7

0

10

6

7

9

5

30

5
7

2

2

7

1
2

0

0

0

0

2
5 23

4
9

2
5

2

2
3

2
2

2

1

0

2
2

2

2 2
2

2
2 2

46

5

7

7
7

7

7

5

7

5 7
5

1

4

7

3

1091

304



 

 

Appendix H 
Projected Conditions Analysis Worksheets 

  

305



HCM 2010 Signalized Intersection Summary
2: Welch Rd & Vick Rd

Projected Synchro 9 Light Report
17032 Page 1

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (veh/h) 201 197 317 239 152 180
Future Volume (veh/h) 201 197 317 239 152 180
Number 3 18 2 12 1 6
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1863 1863 1863 1900 1863 1863
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 203 184 320 231 154 182
Adj No. of Lanes 1 1 1 0 1 1
Peak Hour Factor 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99 0.99
Percent Heavy Veh, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, veh/h 390 348 487 352 462 1208
Arrive On Green 0.22 0.22 0.48 0.48 0.10 0.65
Sat Flow, veh/h 1774 1583 1007 727 1774 1863
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 203 184 0 551 154 182
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/ln 1774 1583 0 1734 1774 1863
Q Serve(g_s), s 9.2 9.3 0.0 21.9 3.4 3.5
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 9.2 9.3 0.0 21.9 3.4 3.5
Prop In Lane 1.00 1.00 0.42 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 390 348 0 839 462 1208
V/C Ratio(X) 0.52 0.53 0.00 0.66 0.33 0.15
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 390 348 0 839 462 1208
HCM Platoon Ratio 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Upstream Filter(I) 1.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 31.3 31.3 0.0 17.8 11.6 6.2
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 4.9 5.7 0.0 4.0 1.9 0.3
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(50%),veh/ln 5.0 4.6 0.0 11.3 1.9 1.9
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 36.2 37.0 0.0 21.8 13.6 6.5
LnGrp LOS D D C B A
Approach Vol, veh/h 387 551 336
Approach Delay, s/veh 36.6 21.8 9.7
Approach LOS D C A

Timer 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Assigned Phs 1 2 6 8
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 15.0 50.0 65.0 26.0
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 6.0 6.0 * 6 6.0
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 9.0 43.0 * 59 20.0
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+I1), s 5.4 23.9 5.5 11.3
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 0.1 4.6 5.6 0.8

Intersection Summary
HCM 2010 Ctrl Delay 23.1
HCM 2010 LOS C

Notes

306



HCM 2010 TWSC
7: Vick Rd & Access

Projected Synchro 9 Light Report
17032 Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.2

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 2 7 13 501 325 4
Future Vol, veh/h 2 7 13 501 325 4
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 0 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 2 8 14 545 353 4
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 928 355 358 0 - 0
          Stage 1 355 - - - - -
          Stage 2 573 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 297 689 1201 - - -
          Stage 1 710 - - - - -
          Stage 2 564 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 294 689 1201 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 294 - - - - -
          Stage 1 710 - - - - -
          Stage 2 557 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 11.9 0.2 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1201 - 531 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.012 - 0.018 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8 - 11.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

307



 

 

Appendix I 
Turn Warrants 

  

308



Vick Road Left Turn Warrant at Meadow View Driveway

igure 2 - 5. Guideline for determining the need for a major-road left-turn bay at a two-way stop-controlled intersection.

2-lane roadway (English)
INPUT

Value
35
2%
501
329

OUTPUT

Value
902

CALIBRATION CONSTANTS

Value
3.0
5.0
1.9

Advancing volume (VA), veh/h:
Opposing volume (VO), veh/h:

Variable

Variable

Variable

85th percentile speed, mph:
Percent of left-turns in advancing volume (VA), %:

Critical headway, s:
Average time for left-turn vehicle to clear the advancing lane, s:

Limiting advancing volume (VA), veh/h:

Guidance for determining the need for a major-road left-turn bay:
Left-turn treatment NOT warranted.

Average time for making left-turn, s:

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

O
p

p
o

si
n

g
 V

o
lu

m
e 

(V
O
),

 v
eh

/h

Advancing Volume (VA), veh/h

Left-turn treatment 
warranted.

Left-turn 
treatment not 
warranted.

Source: National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 457- Evaluating Intersection Improvements: An Engineering Study Guide309



Vick Road and Meadow View 
Driveway Right Turn Warrant

Figure 2 - 6. Guideline for determining the need for a major-road right-turn bay at a two-way stop-controlled intersection.

INPUT

Value
35
329
4

OUTPUT

Value
942

right-turn bay for a 2-lane roadway:
Do NOT add right-turn bay.

Roadway geometry:

Variable

Variable

Guidance for determining the need for a major-road 

Major-road speed, mph:
Major-road volume (one direction), veh/h:
Right-turn volume, veh/h:

Limiting right-turn volume, veh/h:

2-lane roadw ay

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600

R
ig

h
t-

T
u

rn
 V

o
lu

m
e

, v
e

h
/h

Major-Road Volume (one direction), veh/h

Add right - turn bay

Source:  National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 457- Evaluating Intersection Improvements:  An Engineering Study Guide310



 

 

Appendix J 
FDOT Index 301 

311



312



 

 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2018\Sterling Title\5 City Council Hearings 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

   Rendering 
   

SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (REDEVELOPMENT) – 

STERLING TITLE 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR STERLING 

TITLE 
  
SUMMARY:     

OWNER/APPLICANT: Prograde Homes, Inc. c/o Bryan Blake 
 
ENGINEER:   Linn Engineering and Design c/o Eric Lagassey, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 217 South Highland Avenue 

 
PARCEL ID #:   10-21-28-0000-00-031 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Residential 
 
PROPOSED USE: Office 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.26 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 1,337 square feet 
   
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.12 (0.25 Maximum) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  

313



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
STERLING TITLE– FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 (Retail Commercial) Automobile Service Station and 

Multi-tenant Center 

South (City) Commercial C-1 Alterations and Tailoring Studio 

East (City) Commercial C-1 Single Family Residence and Salon 

West (City) Commercial PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) 

Vacant 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  This is a request to approve the Sterling Title Redevelopment Final 

Development Plan that includes conversion of an existing residential structure with 1,337 square feet.  A 

preliminary development plan is not required for development proposing less than 10,000 square feet of 

building floor area.  No square footage will be added to the existing building, which a one being converted 

from residential use to commercial use.  No existing canopy trees are proposed to be removed.  This project 

has been determined as a redevelopment plan based on Section 6.07(A) Hardship Waiver of the Land 

Development Code (LDC) as it meets the following criteria: 

1. Existing structure ten years of age or greater. 

 

2. The proposed improvements enhance the economic value of the property. 

 

3. The proposed improvements enhance the esthetics of the project site. 

 

4. The developer/owner demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Development Review Committee 

(DRC) the proposed improvements would not adversely impact any surrounding properties.  

 

5. Proposed improvements are less than 50 percent of the value of the property improvements.  

PARKING/ACCESS/TRANSPORTATION:  Per LDC parking requirements, 5 parking spaces are 

required and being proposed, one of which is reserved as a handicapped accessible space.  As a 

redevelopment, the applicant is requesting to reduce the required minimum length of a tandem parking 

space from 18-feet to 16-feet. 

The site will have ingress and egress via Highland Avenue.  Due to the area restrictions of the site, the 

applicant is requesting to reduce the required minimum width of a one-way drive aisle from 18-feet to 11-

feet, as well as, a request to reduce the required minimum width of a two-way internal drive aisle from 24-

feet to 16-feet. 

According to LDC Section 6.07(C), adjustments to requirements, parking. The DRC may, in accordance 

with this site plan application, authorize parking requirements upon demonstration by the developer that 

the characteristics of the proposed use required a greater or lesser number of parking spaces than that 

required or proposed. 

STORMWATER:   The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, on the eastern 

portion of the project site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development Code 

requirements. 
314



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
STERLING TITLE– FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

LANDSCAPING/BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the redevelopment plan approval, four 

specimen oak trees ranging from 24 inches to 48 inches in diameter at breast height (DBH) will be 

preserved.  A row of Japanese Holly trees will be added to the south façade of the building.  Red Bud, King 

Sago and Crape Myrtle trees will be planted to embellish the entrance and driveway.  As no trees will be 

removed, there is no arbor mitigation fee is due based on the following arbor assessment. 

 

 Arbor Assessment 

Total inches on-site (before removal): 124 

Total specimen inches removed 0 

Total inches retained: 124 

Total inches added: 3 

Total inches post development:                       127 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 23, 2018 – Planning Commission, 5:30 pm 

November 7, 2018 – City Council, 1:30 pm 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Sterling Title Final Development Plan, 

subject to the findings of this staff report. 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 23, 2018, found the Sterling Title Final Development 

Plan consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and unanimously 

recommended approval of Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

City Council:  Approve the Sterling Title Final Development Plan. 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

315



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
STERLING TITLE– FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Sterling Title - Final Development Plan (Redevelopment) 

Owner/Applicant:  Prograde Homes, Inc. c/o Bryan Blake 

Engineer:  Linn Engineering and Design c/o Eric Lagassey, P.E. 

Location:   217 South Highland Avenue 
Parcel I.D. #:    10-21-28-0000-00-031 
Total Site Area:  0.26 acres +/- 

 
   

  VICINITY MAP 

 

   
 

Subject Property 

316



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
STERLING TITLE– FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Subject Property 

317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2018\Carriage Hill Phase 2 - FDP & Plat\5 City Council Hearings 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan/Plat  Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

   Plat 
   

SUBJECT:    CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION – FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 

 

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT FOR 

CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION 
  
SUMMARY:   

OWNER/APPLICANT: JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC  
   
PROJECT ENGINEER: Dewberry Engineers, Inc. c/o Christopher Allen, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1455 West Lester Road; West Lester Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (Max 3.5 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   R-1 (Single Family Residential) District 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-Family Residential Subdivision (15 Lots; min. 9,000 sq. ft. lot area, 

75 ft. min. lot width) 
 
PROPOSED DENSITY:         1.69 du/ac 
 
TRACT SIZE:   10.31 +/- acres 
 
DEVELOPABLE AREA: 8.89 +/- acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

330



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Vacant Land 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Oak Hill Reserve Subdivision 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban 
R-1 Oak Hill Reserve Park and  

Open Space Tract 

West (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Carriage Hill Phase I Subdivision 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Carriage Hill Phase II Subdivision – Final Development Plan and Plat 
propose the development of 15 single family residential lots.  The minimum typical lot width is 75 feet with 
a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet.    Lots abutting the Oak Hill Reserve neighborhood are 11,996 sq. 
ft. to 21,046 sq. ft.  The required minimum living area for a house in this subdivision is 1,500 square feet 
as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code for single-family lots located within the R-1 zoning.  
Phase 1 and II of Carriage Hills will share the same recreation amenities.   The minimum setbacks applicable 
to this project are: 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 

Front* 25’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 

ACCESS:  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be through Carriage Hill Phase I, which 
has full access onto Rogers Road to the west as well as a future northern connection to the Vista Reserve 
residential subdivision.  

TRANSPORTATION:  Per Code, a transportation impact analysis (TIA) was not required for this 

development as it generates under 400 daily trips. 

STORMWATER: The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area and located on 
the southern portion of the project site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development 
Code requirements. 

RECREATION:  For the entire Carriage Hill Subdivision (Phase I), the applicant provided 0.46 
acre/approximately 20,038 square feet of recreation space that includes a playground with the Phase I Final 
Development Plan.  Phase II contains a total of 5.58 acres of open space including drainage, existing 
wetland, buffer and pond. 

BUFFER(S)/LANDSCAPING:   Trumpet trees and live oaks line the single family lots.  The landscape 

plan meets the requirements of the Land Development Code.   

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  A school concurrency mitigation agreement has been executed and a 

copy of the letter from Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) has been supplied to Staff. 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the plat for this property 

through the DRC agenda distribution. 

 
331



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 23, 2018 – Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

November 7, 2018 – City Council, 1:30 p.m.  

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of Carriage Hill Phase II Subdivision Final 

Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 23, 2018, found the Carriage Hill Phase II 

Subdivision Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and unanimously 

recommended approval of the Plat and Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Carriage Hill Phase II Subdivision Final Development Plan and Plat subject to 

the findings of this staff report 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  

332



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Carriage Hill Phase II Subdivision – Preliminary Development Plan 

Property Owner: JTD Land at Rogers Rd. LLC 

Applicant:    Dewberry Engineers, Inc. c/o Christopher Allen, P.E. 

Total Site Area: +/- 10.31 +/- acres 

Parcel ID #s:  29-20-28-0000-00-005 and 29-20-28-0000-00-049 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
  

Subject Property 

333



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 
CARRIAGE HILL PHASE II SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

  
 

Subject Property 

334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBIT(S): Legal Description 

X OTHER: Vacate Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

   Aerial Map 

   Ordinance No. 2657  
 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2657 – VACATE A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF -WAY – 

FRONDS ROAD 

 

REQUEST: SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2657 – VACATE A 

PORTION OF FRONDS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 
  
 

SUMMARY: 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Pat Lee / Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd. 
  
LOCATION: South of U.S. Highway 441, East of Hermit Smith Road and West of U.S. 

441 
 
EXISTING USE:  Right-of-way 
 
AREA TO BE VACATED: 3,067 Square Feet +/- 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant (Mid-Florida Freezer – Owner) 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant (Mid-Florida Freezer – Owner) 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant (Mid-Florida Freezer – Owner) 

West (City) N/A N/A Fronds Road Right-of-Way 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A     
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 363



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

FRONDS ROAD VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd. is seeking to vacate a portion of 
Fronds Road that is an existing public right-of-way. All property abutting the portion to be vacated is owned 
by Mid-Florida Freezer Ltd.  The vacated right-of-way is proposed to be incorporated into the Mid-Florida 
Logistics Park Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan.  A portion of Fronds Road, west of the proposed 
right-of-way vacation to Hermit Smith Road, will remain as public right-of-way. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 17, 2018 - City Council - 1st Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

November 7, 2018 - City Council - 2nd Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 5, 2018 - Public Hearing Notice (Apopka Chief) 

October 26, 2018 - (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate a portion of Fronds 

Road Right-of-Way as described in the Sketch of Description attached below.  

 

The City Council, at its meeting on October 17, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2657, and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on November 7, 2018.  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2657.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

364



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

FRONDS ROAD VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 
Applicant:    Mid Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd. 

 

Total Acres:    3,067 square feet, more or less 

 

 
 365



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

FRONDS ROAD VACATE 

PAGE 4 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

366



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

FRONDS ROAD VACATE 

PAGE 5 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

Subject Right-of-Way 

367



ORDINANCE NO. 2657 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A RIGHT-
OF-WAY, KNOWN AS FRONDS ROAD, LOCATED SOUTH OF U.S. 
HIGHWAY 441, EAST OF S.R. 429; IN SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21, 
RANGE 27, OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by the Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd., to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and 
disclaim roadway as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CenturyLink, Duke Energy, Charter Spectrum Communications and Lake 
Apopka Natural Gas District have no objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing 
utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

The South 60.00 feet of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 1, Township 

21 South, Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida, less the East 746.00 feet thereof, 

also less, that portion lying West of the Northerly extension of the East line of the 

West 200.00 feet of the East ¾ of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said 

Section 1. 
 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
 Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 

368



ORDINANCE NO. 2657 

PAGE 2 

 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 17, 2018    
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  November 7, 2018      
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Bryan Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Clifford Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  October 5, 2018; October 26, 2018 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

369



ORDINANCE NO. 2657 

PAGE 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2657 

EXHIBIT “A”. 
 

City of Apopka 

Proposed Vacate of Right-of-Way 

Fronds Road 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

  

Peterson Road 

Fronds Road 

Subject Right-of-Way 

370



ORDINANCE NO. 2657 

PAGE 4 

 

Total Area:  3,067 square feet +/-   (.07 acre +/-)

 

371



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENA  MEETING OF: November 7, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Vacate  Ordinance No. 2680 

    Utility Release Letters 

    Survey 

    CenturyLink Encroach. Agreement 

    Property Owner Acceptance Letter 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2680 – UTILITY EASEMENT VACATE – WILLIE 

AND CYNTHIA MCINVALE – 1541 ISLAY COURT 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2680 – UTILITY 

EASEMENT VACATE – WILLIE AND CYNTHIA MCINVALE – 1541 

ISLAY COURT 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Willie and Cynthia McInvale 
 
LOCATION:    1541 Islay Ct. 
 
LAND USE:    Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-1AA 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single-Family Residence 
 
AREA TO BE VACATED:  629.44 +/- Sq. Ft. 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single Family Residence 
East - City Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single Family Residence 

South - City Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single Family Residence 
West - City Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single Family Residence 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 372



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

WILLIE & CYNTHIA MCINVALE – UTILITY EASEMENT VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicants are seeking to vacate a portion of an existing 10-foot wide 

utility easement located along the rear property line to accommodate a swimming pool.  The southern six-

feet of a portion of the 10-foot wide utility easement will be vacated as shown on the accompanying survey.  

A pool edge must be setback a minimum of five-feet from the rear property line.   

 

 Vacating this portion of the utility easement will not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

The Development Review Committee, including the Public Services Department, has evaluated the site and 

has agreed to the vacate request. Additionally, all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant 

and have provided the letters received from each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate 

request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 17, 2018 - City Council - 1st Reading  

November 7, 2018 - City Council - 2nd Reading  

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 5, 2018 - Public Hearing Notice (Apopka Chief) 

October 26, 2018 – Public Hearing Notice (Apopka Chief) 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommended approval of the request to vacate a portion of the 
existing drainage and utility easement as described in the legal description. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 17, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2680 
and held it over for second reading on November 7, 2018. 
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance No. 2680 
 

373



CITY COUNCIL – NOVEMBER 7, 2018 

WILLIE & CYNTHIA MCINVALE – UTILITY EASEMENT VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 

 Willie and Cynthia McInvale 

Proposed Vacate of Existing Utility Easement 

1541 Islay Ct. 

Parcel ID: 31-20-28-2521-00-850 

 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 
  

  
 

 
 

374



ORDINANCE NO. 2680 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A PORTION 
OF THE EASEMENT AT THE REAR OF 1541 ISLAY COURT, LOCATED 
NORTH OF ISLAY COURT, WEST OF TOURNAMENT DRIVE; 
PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by William and Cynthia McInvale, to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim a 
portion of an existing utility easement located at 1541 Islay Court, as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CenturyLink (f/k/a Embarq), Progress Energy, Charter Spectrum 
Communications and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no objection to the abandonment of 
a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

A PORTION OF THE SOUTHERLY 6 FEET OF A 10 FOOT UTILITY 

EASEMENT ALONG THE REAR OF LOT 85, ERROL ESTATE UNIT 4A, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7, 

PAGE(S) 88 AND 89, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE AFORESAID LOT 85; 

THENCE RUN N 70°58'02" W 5.04 FEET ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF 

SAID LOT 85; THENCE RUNS 11°43'46" W 4.03 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUES 11°43'46" W 6.05 FEET; THENCE RUN 

N 70°58'02" W 105.29 FEET PARALLEL TO THE SAID NORTHERN LINE OF 

85; THENCE RUN N 19°01'58" E 6.00' FEET; THENCE RUNS 70°58'02" E 

104.52 FEET PARALLEL TO THE SAID NORTHERN LINE OF 85 AND TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Containing: Containing 629.44 square feet, more or less. 
 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

375



ORDINANCE NO. 2680 

PAGE 2 

 
 
 Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 17, 2018 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  November 7, 2018 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Bryan Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Clifford Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  October 5, 2018; October 26, 2018 
 

 

 

  

376



ORDINANCE NO. 2680 

PAGE 3 

 

Section of Utility 
Easement 

to be vacated 

ORDINANCE NO. 2680 

EXHIBIT “A”. 
William and Cynthia McInvale 

Proposed Vacate of Existing Utility Easement 

1541 Islay Court 

Parcel ID: 31-20-28-2521-00-850 

 

VICINITY MAP 

(THIS IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO SCALE) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

377



378



379



380



381



382



 
 
 
10/16/2018 
 
Bill McInvale 
1541 Islay Court 
Apopka, FL 32712 
 
SUBJECT:  10.00’ Utility Easement Encroachment, 1541 Islay Ct. 
APN: 312028252100850 
 
Mr. McInvale: 
 
CenturyLink has reviewed your Request to Proceed with Improvements as shown on Exhibit “A”, said 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, within the Easement Tract and has no 
objections providing, however, the following terms and conditions are agreed to, and met, by Bill McInvale, 
his contractors, representatives, employees, assigns, and/or future property owners (collectively “Property 
Owner”): 
 

1.  A minimum of 3 feet of cover above CenturyLink facilities is maintained at all times and the final 
grade provides for no less then said 3 feet of cover. 
 
2. If any CenturyLink facilities are damaged or require relocation as a result of said Improvements, 
or the act of installing, maintaining or removing said Improvements, Property Owner agrees to bear 
the cost of repair and/or relocation of said CenturyLink facilities.  Repairs and relocations will be 
performed under the guidelines of CenturyLink, all regulating entities, and the supervision of a 
CenturyLink Inspector. 
 
3.  No buildings or structures are to be placed within the Easement Tract other than those shown 
on Exhibit “A”.  Any future encroachment will require a separate agreement. 

 
The act of proceeding with work of any type within the Easement Tract or, if the structure is existing as of 
the date of this letter, the act of not immediately removing the structure from the Easement Tract, constitutes 
Property Owner’s acceptance of the above terms and Property Owner agrees to be bound by said terms. 
 
It is the intent and understanding of CenturyLink that this action shall not reduce our rights to any existing 
easement or rights we have on this site or in the area. 
 
The acceptance of the hereinabove terms and conditions shall “run with the land” and be enforceable upon 
the property owner of record at the time of any damage or required relocation of CenturyLink facilities due 
to the encroachment as shown on Exhibit A or any breach of these terms and conditions. 
 
If you have any questions or would like to discuss this action further, please contact Tommy Sassone at 
Thomas.Sassone@CenturyLink.com. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
Tommy Sassone 
Network Infrastructure Services 
CenturyLink 

 

383



EXHIBIT A

384



385



 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  
___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 
       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Exhibit A 
  X  OTHER: Resolution No. 2018-23 

  
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 23 – AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

 
REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-23 TOTALING $488,261.20 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
On September 27, 2017, by Resolution No. 2017-17, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal 
year 2017/2018.  The City has committed to expenditures and has experienced unanticipated 
revenues/expenditures through the current fiscal year that need to be reflected in the current budget.  Florida 
Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body amend the budget in the same manner as the 
original budget is adopted. 
 
Exhibit A – This amendment includes changes for the funding and appropriations for the Splash Pad at Kit 
Land Nelson Park.  These appropriations should have been carried forward from fiscal  year 2017. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 2017 - 2018 Budget Amendment for the Splash Pad project will be funded from carry forward reserves.      
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-23 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

386



Date : _______________ Date Entered:
Prepared by: _________  Entered By:
Approved by: _________      Batch #:
Entry Code: __________   Posted By:

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
104-389-0009 CARRY-OVER APPROPRATIONS(BUDGET) 488,261.20      
104-3614-572-63000 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS. 488,261.20      

TOTAL 488,261.20      488,261.20      

COMMENTS: RESOLUTION 2018-23

EXHIBIT A
CITY OF APOPKA

BUDGET AMENDMENT
Wednesday, November 07, 2018

THE SPLASH PAD BUDGET WAS NOT CARRIED FORWARD FROM FY 2017 INTO FY 2018.

387



 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-23 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that 

the Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 should be amended; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body 

amend the budgets in the same manner as the original budget is adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal year 2017/2018 

through resolution on September 27, 2017.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the Budget for the City of Apopka, Florida, and Fiscal Year 

2017/2018 is hereby amended as indicated in Exhibit A – with an amendment totaling $488,261.20 

which are hereby attached and made part of this Resolution by reference thereto. 

SECTION 2: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon final passage 

and adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS 7TH DAY OF November, 2018 
 

      
 CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 
______________________________                                    

                      BRYAN NELSON, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
SUSAN M. BONE, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

388



 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 7, 2018  
___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 
       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Exhibit A 
  X  OTHER: Resolution No. 2018-24 

  
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 24 – AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

 
REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-24 TOTALING $275,100.00 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
On September 19, 2018, by Resolution No. 2018-19 the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal 
year 2018/2019.  The City has committed to expenditures and has experienced unanticipated 
revenues/expenditures through the current fiscal year that need to be reflected in the current budget.  Florida 
Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body amend the budget in the same manner as the 
original budget is adopted. 
 
Exhibit A – This amendment includes changes for the funding and appropriations for the rent, 
improvements to the space and the relocation of the tenants for the UCF Incubator; emergency repairs for 
the pressure–sustaining valve at the North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station; and Fire donations.   
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 2018 - 2019 Budget Amendment includes funding from general reserves for the UCF Incubator 
approved by council on September 5, 2018 and previous year remaining balance of fire donations earmarked 
in reserves for the fire donations.  These donations were already accounted for separately.  The valve repair 
is being funded from the utility (401) fund reserves.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-24 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

389



Date : _______________ Date Entered:
Prepared by: _________  Entered By:
Approved by: _________      Batch #:
Entry Code: __________   Posted By:

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
001-389-0010 FUNDING FROM RESERVES 230,000.00      
001-4020-515-3400 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 221,000.00      
001-4020-515-4400 RENTALS AND LEASES 9,000.00          

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
401-389-0000 FUNDING FROM RESERVES 30,000.00        
401-3191-535-4600 REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIPMENT 30,000.00        

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
401-389-0000 FUNDING FROM RESERVES 15,100.00        
001-2110-522-8201 FIRE CHIEF DONATION EXPENSE 12,100.00        
001-2110-522-8202 FIRE CPR DONATION EXPENSE 3,000.00          

TOTAL 275,100.00      275,100.00      

COMMENTS: RESOLUTION 2018-24

ESTABLISH APPROPRIATION FROM PREVIOUS YEARS REMAINING BALANCE CARRY FORWARDS.  THIS MONEY IS 
SITTING IN RESTRICTED RESERVES FOR ALLOWABLE SPENDING ONLY FOR FIRE.

EXHIBIT A
CITY OF APOPKA

BUDGET AMENDMENT
Wednesday, November 07, 2018

ESTABLISH APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE UCF INCUBATOR RELOCATION TO THE PROPERTY OWNED BY FLORIDA 
HOSPITAL WHICH WAS APPROVED ON SEPTEMBER 5, 2018.  THIS FUNDING ALLOWS FOR RENT, IMPROVEMENTS TO 
THESPACE (WHICH IS NOT OWNED BY THE CITY), AND RELOCATION FUNDS.

ESTABLISH FUNDING AND APPROPRIATIONS FOR EMERGENCY REPAIRS OF THE PRESSURE-SUSTAINING VALVE AT  
THE NORTH SHORE REUSE WATER PUMP STATION.  APPROVAL WAS GIVEN ON TODAY'S CONSENT AGENDA

390



 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-24 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that 

the Budget for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 should be amended; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body 

amend the budgets in the same manner as the original budget is adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal year 2018/2019 

through resolution on September 19, 2018.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the Budget for the City of Apopka, Florida, and Fiscal Year 

2018/2019 is hereby amended as indicated in Exhibit A – with an amendment totaling $275,100 

which are hereby attached and made part of this Resolution by reference thereto. 

SECTION 2: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon final passage 

and adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS 7TH DAY OF November, 2018 
 

      
 CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 
______________________________                                    

                      BRYAN NELSON, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
SUSAN M. BONE, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

391



Brian Forman 
 
Brian Forman has 22 years of professional experience, including 10 years of experience as a municipal 
Recreation Director.  Brian earned a Bachelor’s Degree in Recreation Administration from York College 
of Pennsylvania, and a Master’s Degree in Physical Education and Athletics Administration from Ball 
State University.  He is a Certified Parks and Recreation Professional.  Brian spent the first 17 years of his 
career in Connecticut before serving as Apopka’s Recreation Operations and Maintenance Manager 
from 2013-2014.  Brian accepted a Recreation Director position in Pennsylvania in 2014 where he 
opened an $11-million-dollar member-based Community and Recreation Center, then he returned to 
the area in 2016.  He has served as the Director of Parks and Recreation in Bartow, FL since 2016, 
leading a department that includes 29 full-time employees and a budget over $3 million.  Brian’s 
background includes coaching and officiating baseball, basketball and soccer on the high school and 
collegiate levels, as well as 30 years of experience in youth summer camp.  Brian has a history of 
increasing programs and revenue while enhancing facilities in a fiscally efficient manner.  He resides in 
Winter Garden with his wife and 2 daughters. 

 
 

392



393



394



395



CITY OF APOPKA

ORDINANCE N0. 2612

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA; AMENDING

CERTAIN SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 6, " ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES" OF

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, PROVIDING

FOR CITY ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL OF CONSUMPTION OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR EVENTS ON CITY OWNED

PROPERTY WHERE A LEASE OR RENTAL AGREEMENT HAS BEEN

AUTHORIZED BY CITY COUNCIL FOR SUCH PROPERTY, 

AMENDING DISTANCE RESTRICTIONS ON THE SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN PROXIMITY TO SCHOOLS, 

ELIMINATING DISTANCE REQUIREMENTS ON THE SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN PROXIMITY TO GOVERNMENT

BUILDINGS AND CHURCHES; ELIMINATING DISTANCE

RESTRICTIONS BETWEEN ESTABLISHMENTS FOR THE SALE OF

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES; PROVIDING FOR LOCATION OF SALES

ON CITY -OWNED PROPERTY; AMENDING RESTRICTIONS

REGARDING THE HOURS THAT ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CAN BE

SOLD; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, 

SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 166. 021( 3), Flog°ida Statzrtes, provides, in pertinent part, that "[ t] he

Legislature recognizes that pursuant to the grant of powers set forth in Section 2( b), Art. VIII of

the State Constitution, the legislative body of each municipality has the power to enact legislation
N oncerning any subject matter upon which the state legislature may act" except for certain very
limited matters; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 6, City of Apopka Code of Ordinances, Florida, regulates the sale
and consumption of alcoholic beverages; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City ofApopka, Florida, wishes to amend restrictions
on the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages within the City in accordance with the
requirements of this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka wishes to conform the requirements regarding the hours
that alcoholic beverages may be sold with the requirements of Orange County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that the
continued protection of the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens requires that Chapter 6, of the
Apopka Code of Ordinances be amended accordingly. 

Page 1 of 9

396



LESIGLATIVE UNDERSCORING: Underlined words constitute additions to the City of
Apopka Code of Ordinances, trikethFo , g constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks

indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 6, Alcoholic Beverages of the Code of Ordinances of the City of

Apopka, Florida, is hereby amended as follows: 

Sec. 6- 2. - Definitions. 

Restazr ant means a business advertised and held out to the public to be a place where full - 
course meals are prepared, in a full service kitchen with a commercial stove, refrigerator and oven, 
and served on a regular basis from a prepared menu, , which facility provides seating for at least
25 patrons with standard height dining room tables or booths of adequate size to accommodate the
service of full -course meals in accordance with the number of chairs found at the table, with such
seating exclusive of seating at bars, counters or cocktail tables. The primary operation of the
restaurant shall be for the serving of full -course meals. As . 

d the state a eoholiebeveruge

and -eiga e-tte1avFT-, A restaurant must derive at least 51 percent of its gross revenue from the sale
of food and nonalcoholic beverages. Records provided to the st shall be provided to the city, 

upon written request, for determination of percentage requirements. No person shall attempt to
circumvent the intent of this subsection by an artifice or scheme, such as the serving of stock meals. 
The term " stock meals" as used in this subsection, includes but is not limited to the serving of cold
plates, snacks, hors d'oeuvres, microwave oven heated foods or previously prepared sandwiches. 

or - elementary, mictaleor •• - 

iniver-sities. The term ' Isehooill sliall also inelude properly lieensed day nurseries and othe" iea -re eentefs. 

Sec. 6- 3. Possession or consumption in public place. 

a) Prohibition and exceptions. 

1) It is unlawful for any person to use, possess, consume, or carry in any cup, glass, can, or
other open or unsealed container, any alcoholic beverage or any mixture containing an
alcoholic beverage in any public park or governmental property or on the public right-of- 
way, inclusive of streets, sidewalks or alleys, within the Municipal Corporate Limits of the
City ofApopka Florida except as otherwise permitted under section 6- 3( a)( 4), oi-6- 3( a)( 5), 

or 6- 3) a( 6 . 

Page 2 of 9

397



2) It is unlawful for any person to consume alcoholic beverages or carry in any cup, glass, 
can or other open or unsealed container any alcoholic beverage or any mixture containing
an alcoholic beverage in or upon any parking area open to public use or in or upon any
private property without the consent of the owner, tenant or other person lawfully in
possession of said property except as otherwise permitted under section 6- 3( a)( 4), oi--6- 

3( a)( 5), or 6- 3) a( 6). 

4) The City Council may permit consumption and carrying of alcoholic beverages on streets, 
sidewalks alleys and right -of --way within the Municipal Corporate Limits of the City of
Apopka, Florida and\or on city -owned property subject to such terms and conditions as the
City Council may impose for the protection of the public health, safety and welfare through
approval of a special event permit, use agreement, or other official action. 

5) The City Administrator mawpermit alcohol consumption by official action for events on
city -owned property where a lease or rental agreement has been authorized by city council
for such property, and alcoholic beverage sales and/or service takes place subject to such
terms and conditions as the city administrator or his/her designee may impose for the
protection of the public health safety, and welfare and all other requirements of law. 

h Any individual, corporation, association or organization which has received permission
from the City Couneil to engage in a public or private event is further authorized to provide
alcoholic beverages for consumption at the particular event or program, given such

authorization is expressly approved by the City Coueil pursuant to the requirements of
this Section and seemste-all other requirements of law through the approval of special
event permit, use agreement, or other official action. 

Sec. 6- 7. - Location of sales. 

Page 3 of 9

not apply to supermarkets,(1) eonvenienee stores, The

provixisii 
of this subseetion a) shall

beverages in housedrugst.... Of similar establishments whieh sell aleeholie or as an

in for- eonsumption off theaeeessor use, sealed eontainers, 

750 feet ehure2) No pefse... sell any intexieating beverage within of any established
1, 1 building, I W I13 1, g r r

Th 6 7( a)( 2) toa. subseetion shallnot ply

for lease agreement has been authorized1. City owned propei4y whieh a of fental

beverage take subjeet to sueh termsby eity eouneil, and aleeholie sales plaee

and conditions as the y eouneil y impose

Page 3 of 9

398



MifletrM ILITW

oil 11 1 V V W- 

S

IN IN

ALL

IF IF OR

Me

WAKmm

IF
New A MROGNE& w

wave Iffilve

IWAKWL

MOM

ux
Or

mom

WINFAMWEmewaa

Paged of 9

ems

MOM MI

w. ea—, 
ALL

IF IF OR

Me

WAKmm

IF
New A MROGNE& w

wave Iffilve

IWAKWL

MOM

ux
Or

mom

WINFAMWEmewaa

Paged of 9

399



a) No person shall sell any alcoholic beverage within 500 feet of any established school, which

distance shall be measured by following the shortest route of ordinary pedestrian travel along
the public thoroughfare from the main entrance of such place of business to the nearest point

of the school grounds in use as part of the school facilities. 

b) Where an establishment for the sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages is located in

conformity with subsection ( a) the subsequent location of a school, in the proximity of such
existing establishment shall not be construed to cause such establishment to be in violation of
this chapter, provided the establishment maintains a current occupational license. 

c) The restrictions of subsection ( a) shall not appl to: 

Supermarkets convenience stores drugstores or similar establishments which sell

alcoholic beverages in-house or as an accessory use in sealed containers, for consumption
off the premises. 

Bars and Lounges which: 

limit the sale of alcoholic beverages to wine and/ or beer only in accordance

with a license issued by the Florida Division of Alcoholic Beverages and
Tobacco where wine and/ or beer is served only on the premises and/or sold only

in sealed containers for consumption off the premises; and

ii. are located within both a) the Community Redevelopment Area of the Apopka
Community Redevelopment Agency as designated by the Community
Redevelopment Plan and b) the Downtown Development Overlay District. The

Community Redevelopment Area and Downtown Development Overlay
District share the common area herein described as those lands within the

following boundaries: Highland Avenue to Sheeler Avenue and 10"' Street to

1St Street. 

3, Restaurants which: 

limit the sale of alcoholic beverages to wine and/or beer only in accordance
with a license issued b the Florida Division of Alcoholic Beveraegs and

Tobacco where wine and/ or beer is served only on the premises and/or sold only

in sealed containers for consumption off the premises; and

are located within both a) the Community Redevelopment Area of the Apopka

Community Redevelopment Agency as designated by the Community
Redevelopment Plan and b) the Downtown Development Overlay District. The

Communis Redevelopment Area and Downtown Development Overlay
District share the common area herein described as those lands within the

following boundaries: Highland Avenue to Sheeler Avenue and 10"' Street to

1 st Street. 
Page 5 of 9

400



Non-profit private clubs are that located within both a) the Community Redevelopment

Area of the Apopka Community Redevelopment Agency as designated by the Community
Redevelopment Plan and b) the Downtown Development Overlay District. The

Community Redevelopment Area and Downtown Development Overlay District share the
common area herein described as those lands within the following boundaries: Highland
Avenue to Sheeler Avenue and 10"' Street to l st Street. 

City -owned property for which a lease or rental agreement has been authorized by city
council and alcoholic beverage sales and/or service takes place subject to such terms and

conditions as the city administrator or his/her desineg _ e may impose for the protection of

the public health safety and subject to all other requirements of law. 

A special event permit use agreement or other similar official action approved by the City

for an event on streets sidewalks alleys and right -of --way, and/or city property within the

municipal corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida subject to such terms and
conditions as the city council may impose for the protection of the public health, safety and
welfare. 

Sec. 6- 8. - Existing establishments. 

a) The provisions of this chapter shall not be construed to be retroactive, and any existing
establishment for the sale of alcoholic beverages which conforms to the regulations in effect
when such establishment was established shall not be rendered illegal or in violation through

the adoption of these regulations. If any nonconforming or grandfathered use ceases operation, 
for any reason, for a period of more than 180 days, the nonconforming or grandfathered use
shall be deemed abandoned and shall not thereafter be permitted to continue. 

Sec. 6- 9. - Hours of sale; closing hours. 

Page 6 of 9

aMEMIMARIME WARMS

MMWAIMWAVA
04

Page 6 of 9

401



a) On - premises; catered events; 

sr ezees 

vow

Wi

NOR

was in L ilill; ll: ll III MINE 11 111 ft mm ve

Is W Mid

NZIMMPNINCMTEM

LU

a) On - premises; catered events; 

sr ezees 

a) On -premises; catered events; 

NOR

12

Uzi•- 

Is

vaiwWaimmmimm

hours of operation

1) Exc t as provided by subsections 6- 9( a 1) Si- iv) below, alcoholic beverages may
De sold consumed served or permitted to be served or consumed in anyplace holding a
license issued by the Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco of the Department of
Business and Professional Regulation which license permits the consumption of alcoholic
beverages on the premises of the licensee only between the howl of 11: 00 a.m. and 2: 00

a.m. of the following day, each day of the week except that alcoholic beverages maybe
sold consumed served or permitted to be served or consumed in any holding such

a license, between the hours of 11: 00 a.m. on December 31 and 3 a.m. of the following
da

i) At an golf course holding a license the hours of sale, consumption or service
may begin at 7' 00 a.m. and end at sundown of the same day. 
At any private function at a banquet hall or convention facility holding a license, 
the hours of sale consumption or service may begin at 7: 00 a.m. and end at
3. 00 a.m. of the following day, provided the hall or facility has a minimum
square footage of ten thousand ( 10, 000) square feet available for the private
function. 

Page 7 of 9

402



At any hotel or motel (as the terms are defined by state statute) holding a license, 
the hours of sale consumption or service may begin at 7: 00 a.m. and end at
2: 00 a.m. of the following day, except that at any private guest room the hours
of sale or service may end at 3: 00 a.m. of the following day. 

diV) At any restaurant the hours of 3CL e5 consumption or service may begin at 7: 00
a.m. and end at 2: 00 a.m, of the following day. 

2) Alcoholic beveraegsmay be sold or served at a catered event by a caterer licensed by the
Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco and the Division of Hotels and

Restaurants only between the hours of 9: 00 a.m. and 2: 00 a.m, of the following day. 

3) For those licensed under the Beverage Law to sell alcoholic beverages for consumption
on the vendor's licensed premises and whose principal business is the sale of alcoholic
beverages and for those licensed under the Beverage Law as caterers, the " hours of
oneration" or " hours of business" at a premises shall be restricted to the hours of sale
consumption or service set forth in subsections 4- 3( a) and ( b) above. 

fib) Package sale, off -premises. 

Alcoholic beverages may be sold in any place holding a license under the division ofbeverage
state department of business regulation which license permits package sale of alcoholic

beveragesby the licensee for consumption off the premises of the licensee only between the
hours of 7. 00 a.m. and 2. 00 a.m. of the following day, each day of the week, except that
alcoholic beverages may be sold in anyplace holding a license under the division ofbeverage
state department of business regulation which license permits package sale of alcoholic

beverages by the licensee for consumption off the premises of the licensee between the hours
of 7. 00 a.m. on December thirty-first and 3 a.m. of the following day. 

SECTION 3. CODIFICATION. It is the intention of the City Council that the provisions
Af this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City ofApopka; 

and the City Clerk is directed to take the necessary steps to effect codification into the Code, and
Sections of this ordinance may be numbered or renumbered or lettered or re -lettered and the word
ordinance" may be changed to " chapter ", " section ", " article", or such other appropriate word or

hrase in order to accomplish such codification. Typographical errors which do not affect the intent

may be authorized by the Mayor, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or re - 
codified copy of same with the City Clerk. 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of
this ordinance, or the particular application thereof shall be held invalid by any court, administrative
agency, or other body with appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, 
clauses, or phrases under application shall not be affected thereby. 

Page 8 of 9

403



SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, 

provisions, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and
be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

READ FIRST TIME: December 6, 2017

READ SECOND TIME

ATTEST: 

Linda F. Clerk

APPROVED as to form and legality for use
and reliance by the City of Apopka, Florida. 

Certl-1/ / hry, : d, City Attorney

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 24, 2017

December 8, 2017

Page 9 of 9

404


	Top
	1. 11-07-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 10/17/18
	10-17-18.docx

	2. 11-07-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 10/18/18
	10-18-18 joint WS.docx

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - Proclamation - Purple Heart City
	1. 11-07-18 - CC - Presentation - Waste Water Plant Expansion
	WWTP City Council Presentation - 11-07-18.pdf

	2. 11-07-18 - CC - Presentation - Debt Overview Presentation
	City of Apopka Debt Overview Presentation (Final).pdf
	City of Apopka Debt Policy (Draft 11-2-18).pdf
	City of Apopka Disclosure Policy (Draft 11-2-18).pdf

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent - HR Floating Holiday
	HR - Floating Holiday 2019.docx
	Floating Holiday Vote Results CY19 Count - Certification Sheet.pdf

	2. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent - PD - Police Department Service Weapon Presentation
	Service Weapon Presentation.docx

	3. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent - PD- Expediture from Law Enforcement Trust Funds
	11-07-18 - Federal Law Enforcement Trust Funds.DOCX
	Inv Funds 2018-19 Memo.docx

	4. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent - Lake McCoy
	CA - 11-07-18 - Lake McCoy.docx

	5. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent - School Concurrency Agreement - Apopka Farms
	1 Windward Hills OCPS Concurrency Mitigation Agreement CC 11-7-2018.pdf
	2 APK-18-009 Apopka Farms CMA.pdf

	6. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement - San Sabastian Reserve
	1 San Sebastian Reserve Sewer &amp;amp; Water Cap grnsht.pdf
	2 San Sebastian Reserve Capacity Agreement.pdf

	7. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Sewer &amp; Water Capacity Agreement - Vista Reserve
	1 Vista Reserve Sewer &amp;amp; Water Cap grnsht.pdf
	2 Vista Reserve Capacity Agreement.pdf

	8. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services
	Geotech Renew.docx

	9. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Professional Engineering Services Contract Renew 1
	Professional Engineering Services Renew.docx

	10. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Utility Maintenance mobile pump
	Utility Maintenance Mobile Pump.docx

	11. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Utility Plant Maint LS Pumps
	Utility Plant Maint New Lift Station Pumps.docx

	12. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station Repair
	North Shore Reuse Water Pump Station Repair.docx

	13. 11-07-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Vehicles
	PS Heavy Equipment.docx

	14. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - PS - Blanket PO&apos;s
	Purchase of Utility Commodities 2018 Stafff Report.docx

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - UCF Incubator
	Florida Hospital-UCF Agreements, staff report CC11-7-18.docx
	UCF Incubator project at Med Plaza.doc

	2. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - 7-Eleven Rebuild
	1 7-Eleven FDP CC 11.7.2018.pdf
	2 7-11 Final Development Plan.pdf
	3  7-11  Building Elevations 11 02 18.pdf

	3. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Apopka Business Complex Addition
	1 Apopka Business Complex Addition FDP CC 11.7.2018.pdf
	2 Apopka Business Complex Addition FDP FULL Set.pdf
	3 ABC Building Elevation.pdf
	4 ABC Parking Study.pdf

	4. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Meadow View Apartments
	1 Meadow View Apartments FDP Staff Report CC 11-7-18 C.pdf
	2 Meadow View Apoartments Final Development Plan.pdf
	3 Meadow View Apts - Color Renderings.pdf
	4 Meadow View Apartments Traffic Impact Analysis.pdf

	5. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Sterling Title
	1 Sterling Title FDP CC 11.7.2018.pdf
	2 Sterling Title Redevelopment- FDP Full Set 09-18-18.pdf

	6. 11-07-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan/Plat - Carriage Hill, Phase II
	1 Carriage Hill Phase II FDP Plat CC 11.7.2018.pdf
	2 Carriage HIll PH II FDP Plat PDF.pdf

	1. 11-17-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2657 - 2nd Read - ROW Vacate - Fronds Road - Mid Florida Freezer Warehouse Ltd.
	1 Fronds Road ROW Vacate CC 11-7-18.pdf
	2  Fronds Road - Vacate Ord Rev 11 07 18.pdf

	2. 11-07-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2680 - 2nd Rd - Utility Easement Vacate - Willie &amp; Cynthia McInvale
	1 McInvale Vacate CC2 11-7-2018.pdf
	2 Ordinance No  2680.pdf
	3 Utility Release Letters.pdf
	4 Survey.pdf
	5 Century Link Encroachment Agreement.pdf
	6 McVale Acceptance Letter.pdf

	3. 11-07-18 - CC - Resolution - Budget Amendment FY18
	Staff Report - 7th Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-23.pdf
	Budget Amendment #7 11-07-18.pdf
	Budget Amendment Resolution #2018-23.pdf

	4. 11-07-18 - CC - Resolution - Budget Amendment FY19
	Staff Report - 1st Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-24.pdf
	Budget Amendment #1 11-07-18.pdf
	Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-24.pdf

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - CA - Appointment of Recreation Director
	Brian Forman.pdf

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - City Council Reports - Becker Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance: Hours of Sale
	Ord 2612 Alcoholic Beverages.pdf

	1. 11-07-18 - CC - Mayors Report - Bond Donation
	Bottom

